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Company Information
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Stock Exchange
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1010NB, Stock Exchange
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Stock Exchange
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Bahadurabad:
Balad Trade Centre,
Suite No. 212, 2nd
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Intermarket House,
Plot No. 38-A,
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Pharma, Korangi
Creek, Karachi.

Movenpick Branch:
Office No. 34-35,
Mezzanine Floor,
Business Arcade,
Movenpick Hotel,
Plot No. CL-11,
Survey No. 2, Dr. Ziauddin
Ahmed Road, Karachi.
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Our vision
Our vision is to develop Intermarket

Securities on a professional basis in

order to become the leading market

player in the financial services sector

and a valued contributor in the

development of financial markets.

We will offer best-in-class service in

all our business lines and introduce

superior technology solutions while

keeping our clients' interests on top

at all times.

Our mission
To become the preferred brokerage

firm in Pakistan while playing a

positive role in capital market

d e v e l o p m e n t ,  l e a d i n g  t o

enhancement in the country's

investor base.
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Notice is hereby given that 27th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Intermarket Securities Limited ('the Company') will
be held on Wednesday, October 22, 2025 at 3:00 pm at ICAP Auditorium, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi and
through video link arrangement, to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the six-month audited accounts (transition period) of the Company for the financial year ended
June 30, 2025, together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon;

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2026 and to fix their remuneration.
The present auditors, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

Special Business:

3. To consider and, if deemed fit, approve a credit facility by the Company to Mrs. Erum Bilwani - Chairperson & Director of
the Company, and to pass the following resolutions in accordance with Section 182 of the Companies Act, 2017, with or
without modification(s), addition(s) and/or deletion(s):

"RESOLVED THAT the approval of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded, in addition to the
existing outstanding amount of PKR 50,750,482/- being availed till an extended term till Dec. 31, 2025, to an unsecured
credit facility of Pakistani Rupees Forty Million (Rs. 40,000,000) by the Company to Mrs. Erum Bilwani - Chairperson
of the Company, for the period of two years (effective from actual disbursement) and on such terms and conditions
as set out in the Loan Agreement to be executed between the Company and Mrs. Erum Bilwani, including but not
limited to the amount, tenure, interest rate (if any), repayment schedule, and other covenants as determined by the
Authorized Person and subject to obtaining the approval of the SECP before sanctioning such facility."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the approval of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the
execution of the Loan Agreement and any ancillary documents as may be necessary to give effect to the above
resolution and the Authorized Persons are hereby authorized to amend the terms of the loan as may be required by
the SECP."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Chief Executive Officer and/or Company Secretary of the Company ("Authorized
Persons") be and are hereby authorized singly to determine the terms of the loan, finalize, execute and deliver all
documents, agreements including the loan agreement, and do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or
incidental to give full effect to the foregoing resolution, including making an application to the SECP for its approval."

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.
               By order of the Board
                   SHAHID KAMAL

                                                                                                                                            Company Secretary

           Karachi: September 30, 2025     

NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed for the period from October 15 to October 22, 2025 (both days
inclusive) and no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration during this period. Transfers received in order at the Office
of Company's Share Registrar M/s. F.D. Registrar Services (Private) Ltd, Office#1705, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower A, I.I.
Chundrigar Road Karachi, Pakistan ('Registrar') at the close of business on October 14, 2025 the last working day before
the start of the book closure date will be considered in time to attend and vote at the Meeting.

2. Entitlement to attend, participate and vote at the 27th Annual General Meeting will be according to the Register of Members
as at October 14, 2025.

3. Any member who wants to attend the meeting via video link must send their particulars (Name, copy of CNIC, Folio number,
cell number through email at company.secretary@imsecurities.com.pk  at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. After
due verification of the said particulars, a video link/ login details will be sent through email to connect the meeting.

4. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, may appoint another person as his/her proxy to
attend and vote instead of him/her. An instrument of the proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority, in order to be effective, must be received at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

Notice of 27th Annual General Meeting

Weblink                                                                            QR Code

http://www.imsecurities.com.pk/wp-content/uploads/2025/09/Annual_Report_2025.pdf
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5. CDC shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the meeting must bring his/her Participant ID and Account/Sub-Account
number along with original CNIC or original passport to authenticate his/her identity. In case of Corporate entity, resolution
of Board of Directors/Power of Attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier)
at the time of the meeting.

6. For appointing the proxy; CDC shareholders shall submit the proxy form as per above requirements together with attested
copy of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owner and proxy. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power
of attorney, along with the specimen signature of the nominee, shall be submitted along with the proxy form to the Company.

l The proxy form shall be witnessed by two witnesses with their names, addresses, and CNIC numbers. The proxy shall
produce his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of meeting.

7. Members are requested to notify/submit the following information/documents, in case of book entry securities in CDS to
their respective participants and in case of physical shares to the registrar of the Company by quoting their folio numbers
and name of the Company at the above mentioned address, if not earlier notified/submitted:

l Change in their addresses, if any.

l Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC are requested to submit the same along
with folio numbers at earliest, directly to the Company's Share Registrar M/s. F.D. Registrar Services (Pvt) Ltd.

8. In accordance with regulation 4(7) of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017, shareholders are requested
to provide required dividend mandate information (IBAN) to their respective CDS accounts through their participants or to
the Share Registrar (if shares are in physical form) for direct credit of cash dividends into their designated bank accounts
through electronic modes.

9. The shareholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017
('the Act'), the companies are required to replace their physical shares with book-entry-form within a period not exceeding
four years from the date of the commencement of the Act. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ('SECP'),
vide their letter File no. CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated 26th March, 2021, has advised all listed companies to pursue
their such shareholders who still hold their shares in physical form for converting the same into CDC. Therefore as advised
by SECP, the shareholders who hold physical shares are requested to convert the same into book-entry-form as soon
as possible.

10. In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulation, 2018, (the "Regulations") the right to vote through electronic
voting facility and voting by post shall be provided to members of every listed company for, inter alia, all businesses classified
as special business under the Companies Act, 2017 in the manner and subject to conditions contained in the Regulations.
Detail of E-Voting facility will be shared through e-mail with those members of the company who have valid cell numbers /
e-mail addresses available in the Register of Members of the Company on October 14, 2025 by the e voting service provider.

Identity of the members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through electronic signature or
authentication for login. Members shall cast vote online from October 17, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. till October 21, 2025 5:00
P.M. Voting shall close on October 21, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. Once the vote on the resolution has been casted by a Member,
he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. For convenience of the members, Ballot Paper will be available
on the Company's website https://www.imsecurities.com.pk/ . The members must ensure that the duly filled and signed
ballot paper, along with a copy of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting
through post at the Company's registered address as above or email at chairman@imsecurities.com.pk  one day before the
AGM, i.e., on October 21, 2025 before 5:00 P.M. A postal ballot received after this time / date shall not be considered for
voting. The signature on the Ballot Paper shall match with signature on the CNIC.

11. Pursuance to the SECP's SRO No. 389(i)/2023 dated 21 March 2023 the Company has sought approval from members in
the EOGM held on December 20, 2024. Therefore, audited financial statement for the financial year ended June 30, 2025
will be circulated through QR enabled code and web link. However, hard copies of the financial statements along with all
respective report can be provided on written demand of the members at their registered address. Furthermore, aforesaid
Financial Statements and reports will also be available at the website of the Company https://www.imsecurities.com.pk/ at
least twenty-one days before the date of meeting.

12. All corporate members are requested to provide list of ultimate beneficial shareholding having 10% and above controls in
their organization.

13. In adherence to the regulatory requirements set forth by the SECP, it is hereby stated that no gifts will be distributed at the
meeting.

14. For any query/information, members may contact the Company at email address: company.secretary@imsecurities.com.pk
and/or the Share Registrar of the Company at above mentioned address. Members may also visit website of the Company
https://www.imsecurities.com.pk/  for notices/information.



STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting
of Intermarket Securities Limited (the "Company") to be held on Wednesday October 22, 2025.

As such, this statement of material facts pertains to the credit facility of PKR 40,000,000, if deemed fit and approved, to
be extended by the Company to Mrs. Erum Bilwani - Chairperson & Director of the Company, subject to the approval of
the SECP. Pursuant to a Board Resolution dated July 1, 2024, the Company, in accordance with the applicable laws, approved
a loan of up to PKR 250,000,000/- to its directors and/or relatives, which was availed by Ms. Erum Bilwani pursuant to a
Loan Agreement dated July 1, 2024, as amended by an Amendment Agreement dated June 1, 2025 extending the term
of the Loan Agreement till Dec. 31, 2025 An amount of PKR 200,000,000/- has been repaid by Ms. Erum Bilwani, while
and amount of PKR 50,750,482/-remains outstanding and is repayable by the end of the extended term.

Following are the details of the new loan to be extended in accordance with  S.R.O. 423 (I)/2018:

No other director has any interest, directly or indirectly, in the resolutions except to the extent of their shareholding in the
Company.

Erum Bilwani

Personal

40 million

KIBOR plus 2%

Unsecured

Repayment in Installment as agreed
between the parties within two years.

Approval of Commission will be sought after
approval of Shareholders

As per agreement

As per the board approved policy, the
Company can give loan to directors in
compliance with requirement of Companies
Act, 2017

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Name of the Person

Description and purpose of the loan

Amount of loan

Rate of interest, mark up etc

Security if any, obtained/ to be obtained by the company

Repayment schedule

Disclosure regarding mandatory approval of the Commission

Other principal terms and conditions

A brief on company's policy regarding the loans for directors
or their relatives.

S. No. Description Information Required

S E C U R I T I E S  L T D
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Ballot Paper
Ballot Paper for Voting through Post for the Special Business at the Annual General Meeting of Intermarket Securities Limited

to be held on October 22, 2025 at 3:00 pm at ICAP Auditorium, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi

Duly filled/signed ballot paper to be sent to the Chairman, Intermarket Securities Limited, Registered Office:  5th Floor, Bahria
Complex IV, Ext. Block, Gizri, Karachi, Pakistan  (website www.imsecurities.com.pk) or by email at chairman@imsecurities.com.pk

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders

Registered Address

Folio / CDS Account Number

Number of shares held

Name of Proxy Holder

CNIC/Passport Number (copy to be attached) 

Additional Information and enclosures (In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and Federal Government.)

Name of Authorized Signatory

CNIC/Passport Number (copy to be attached)

1. Please indicate your Vote by ticking (?) the relevant box.

2. In case both the boxes are marked as (?), your ballot paper shall be treated as "Rejected".

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following Special Resolution through postal ballot by conveying my/our
assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (?) mark in the appropriate box below:

.

Signature of shareholder(s)/ Proxy Holder/Authorized Signatory                    Place:   Date:

NOTES/PROCEDURE FOR SUBMISSION OF BALLOT PAPER:

1.  Copy of CNIC/Passport (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.
2.  Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC/Passport (in case of foreigner).
3.  Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be rejected

Description of Special Resolutions
I / We assent to
the Resolutions

(FOR)

I / We dissent to
the Resolutions

(AGAINST)

"RESOLVED THAT the approval of the Shareholders of the Company be and
is hereby accorded, in addition to the existing outstanding amount of PKR
50,750,482/- being availed till an extended term till Dee.31, 2025, to an
unsecured credit facility of Pakistani Rupees Forty Million (Rs. 40,000,000) by
the Company to Mrs. Erum Bilwani - Chairperson of the Company, for the
period of two years (effective from actual disbursement) and on such terms
and conditions as set out in the Loan Agreement to be executed between the
Company and Mrs. Erum Bilwani, including but not limited to the amount,
tenure, interest rate (if any), repayment schedule, and other covenants as
determined by the Authorized Person and subject to obtaining the approval
of the SECP before sanctioning such facility."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the approval of the Shareholders of the Company
be and is hereby accorded for the execution of the Loan Agreement and any
ancillary documents as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution
and the Authorized Persons are hereby authorized to amend the terms of the
loan as may be required by the SECP."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Chief Executive Officer and/or Company
Secretary of the Company ("Authorized Persons") be and are hereby authorized
singly to determine the terms of the loan, finalize, execute and deliver all
documents, agreements including the loan agreement, and do all acts, deeds
and things as may be necessary or incidental to give full effect to the foregoing
resolution, including making an application to the SECP for its approval."
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Directors� Profile

ERUM BILWANI
Chairperson

Mrs. Bilwani is the sponsor and major shareholder of Intermarket Securities, which was created post the acquisition

of ING Barings Pakistan operations in the early 2000s.

She is a successful Pakistani businesswoman and investor with diversified experience in the financial sector primarily

in the capital market. She is also a philanthropist and has worked with various NGOs in Pakistan, with a keen focus

on making Pakistan better for women and developing opportunities for women to gain education and work in a safe

and reputable environment.

WAJID HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Wajid has over 25 years of experience in Pakistan's capital market and has held key management positions

throughout his career. Before joining Intermarket Securities Ltd in 2018, he was the CEO and Board member at Global

Securities for almost 15 years. He has forged strong business relationships with the top financial institutions in Pakistan.

Since joining IMS, he has been instrumental in initiating new trading relationships to expand the firm's client base and

market share.

SYED RAZA HAIDER JAFRI
Executive Director (Resigned on 21-07-2025)

Mr. Raza possesses more than 15 years of experience in sell-side equity research and sales. Prior to rejoining Intermarket

Securities Ltd, Raza was the Chief Executive Officer of EFG Hermes Pakistan. Raza commenced his career at AKD

Securities Limited, and was last associated with AKD in the capacity of Head of Research. Raza carries an in-depth

understanding of majors sectors at the PSX with a specialization in covering Commercial Banks. He was awarded "Best

Analyst of 2015/16? by CFA Society Pakistan, and also received " Best Equity Salesperson" from CFA Society Pakistan

two years in a row. Raza graduated from the Lahore University of Management Sciences and is a CFA charter holder.

SHEHZAD HUSSAIN
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shehzad has over 20 years' experience in Pakistan's capital markets and has had a distinguished career representing

some of the country's leading financial institutions.

Mr. Shehzad served as CEO of Intermarket Securities from 2014-2018. During his tenure at IMS, the company launched

research and investment banking, as well as an institutional trading desk, leading to a rapid increase in market share.

Earlier, Mr. Shehzad served as an advisor to the fund management function of the Employees Old Age Benefit Institution

(EOBI) which is the national contribution and pension institution with AUMs of US$3 bn.

Prior to EOBI, he served as Vice President Capital Markets at Pak Oman Investment Company - a specialized financial

institution formed as a JV between the Government of Pakistan and the Sultanate of Oman.

MUHAMMAD ASHFAQ
Independent Director

Mr. Ashfaq is a seasoned Chartered Accountant with over 25 years of audit and advisory experience, primarily in the

financial services sector. Holding prestigious certifications, including FCA (Pakistan), CIMA and CGMA (UK), and CPA

(Australia), he has built a distinguished career in financial advisory, internal audit, and corporate governance.



His expertise spans due diligence, internal control systems, and agreed-upon procedures for strategic organizations

across the Middle East. He has played a key role in establishing internal audit functions for large corporations and has

held leadership positions, including Director of Internal Audit at Savola Group. His extensive market experience in the

Middle East positions him as a highly skilled professional in financial oversight and strategic advisory.

MUHAMMAD REHAN ALAM
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Rehan began his professional career at KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., a member firm of KPMG International, where

he gained valuable experience working with multinational clients across various economic sectors, including Maersk

Pakistan and Singer Pakistan.

In late 2014, he joined Intermarket Securities, bringing with him diverse expertise in finance, compliance, audit, and

assurance. His broad industry exposure and strong professional background enable him to contribute effectively to

financial and regulatory functions.

MUHAMMAD AHMED MASOOD
Independent Director

Mr. Ahmed Masood graduated with outstanding merit from the Lahore University of Management Sciences in the year

2011 and soon thereafter joined the firm of MCAS & W, as an associate, beginning his journey on to becoming the

Senior Partner of Haider Waheed Partners. During his years of practice, he has established himself as an adept litigator,

known for his ability to identify the particulars needs of his clients, their circumstances and deliver to them effectively.

His practice before the bar has demonstrated a sound understanding of the law that is well grounded in research,

coupled with an argumentative style that is innovative, assertive and tackles even the most challenging propositions.

His areas of specialty range from taxation and customs, land and property, election disputes as well as claims pertaining

to labour/ service and other contractual matters.
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Chairperson Review
Review Report by the Chairperson on the overall performance of Board and effectiveness of the role played by the
Board in achieving the Company's objectives:

Ø The Board of Directors ("the Board") of Intermarket Securities Limited ("IMS") has performed their duties
meticulously in safeguarding the best interest of shareholders' of the Company and has managed the affairs
of the Company in an effective and efficient manner, towards achieving its objective, in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations.

Ø The Board is comprised of diverse experience of professionals. They brought with them local and international
working expertise in various segments of the business.  The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation
of non-executive and independent directors on the Board and its committees as required under the Code of
Corporate Governance ("Code") and that members of the Board and its respective committees has adequate
skill experience and knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company.

Ø The Board has formed an Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and has approved
their respective TORs as required under the Code and has assigned them with adequate resources to achieve
the desired objective effectively.

Ø The Board has established and put in place the rigorous mechanism for an annual evaluation of its own
performance and that of its committees and individual directors.

Ø The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with orientation courses to enable them to perform their
duties in an effective manner and that the one director on the Board have already taken certification under the
Directors Training Program and the remaining directors meet the qualification and experience criteria of the
Code.

Ø The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and that of its committee were held with the requisite
quorum, all the decision making were taken through Board resolution and that the minutes of all the meetings
including its committee are appropriately recorded and maintained.

Ø The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and corporate values adhered
through the Company and has developed significant policies for smooth functioning.

Ø The Board has actively participated in strategic planning process enterprise risk management system, policy
development, and financial structure, monitoring and approval.

Ø All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its committees to strengthen
and formalize the corporate decision making process.

Ø The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place and its regular assessment through
self-assessment mechanism and /or internal audit activities.

Ø The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a timely manner and the
Board members are kept abreast of developments between meetings.

Ø The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulation applicable on the Company and the Board has always prioritized the Compliance with all
the applicable laws and regulation in terms of their conduct as directors and exercising their powers and decision
making.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all the stakeholders for their trust and support. I am confident that the
Company has all the ingredients necessary to achieve the expectations of all its stakeholders.

In conclusion, we pray to almighty Allah for his blessings, guidance, health and prosperity to us, our Company and
its Group Company, Country and Nation.

_____________
ERUM BILWANI
Chairperson

Karachi:  September 01, 2025
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Directors� Report to the Members
The Directors of your Company are pleased to present herewith Six-Months Audited Financial Statements (for the transition
period due to change of financial year) of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2025, together with the
Auditors' Report thereon.

Principle Activities of the Business & Performance Review
The core business activity of your Company is equity brokerage. The Company posted an operating revenues of Rs. 643.56
million during the six months under review. However, the operating revenue numbers are not comparable due to change
in financial year. The company's before and after-tax profits were stood at Rs.  218.73 million and Rs. 155.37 million,
respectively.

The operating results of the Company for the six-month ended June 30, 2025 are summarized as follows:

January 01, 2025 to
June 30, 2025

_____ Rupees _____

Operating revenue 643,561,264
Income from investments net (10,074,694)

633,486,570

Administrative expenses (417,451,249)
Other expenses (18,397,963)
Other income 57,557,612

255,194,970

Finance costs (35,135,486)

Profit before levies and taxation 220,059,484

Levies (1,332,167)

Profit before taxation 218,727,317

Taxation net (63,355,740)

Profit after taxation 155,371,577

Earning per share basic and diluted 0.12

The Company reported net profit of Rs. 155 million (EPS Rs. 0.12 per share) in the 2nd half of Financial year 2025.

The company's market share has  increased to 7.58%  from 5.82% in the corresponding period last year  backed by strong
market performance. The increase in market share mainly attributed to the business from foreign and retail clients. Brokerage
revenue from foreign clients increased by 40x to PKR 48.70 million (2HFY24: PKR 1.2 million). Whereas, Business from local
financial institutions has shown growth of 88% to PKR 99.70 million (2HFY24: PKR 52.43 million). Following the merger
with EFG Hermes, the company has also expanded its reach among foreign clients and broker dealers. With an effective
business and marketing strategies, the company retail business has also posted an increase of 100% to PKR 400.34 million
(2HFY24: PKR 220 million).  The company will continue to explore opportunities within retail segments to increase its clients
base.

The year closed on a strong note, with the merger with EFG Hermes already delivering tangible benefits, supported by
improving macroeconomic conditions such as multi-year low inflation and a current account surplus. This favorable backdrop
has boosted investor confidence, driving stronger market participation and higher daily trading volumes and values. With
the merger now complete, we are building on this momentum by expanding our market share, currently over  7%, through
targeted initiatives across diverse client segments. Looking ahead, performance is expected to further strengthen as the
government's focus on sustainable growth under the IMF program helps preserve macro stability, though strict compliance
with IMF conditions and progress on structural reforms will remain crucial. While short-term risks persist-particularly from
recent floods in Punjab, likely to extend into Sindh, that could impact agriculture (c.25% of GDP) and weigh on market
activity-we remain confident that medium-term prospects will stay intact, driving improved performance for your company.

Dividend and other appropriations
During the period under review, your  Company paid an interim cash dividend of 20% (Rs. 2.0 per share prior to stock split)
to all eligible shareholders in respect of the financial year ended June 30, 2025 (Transition period).

Post Balance Sheet Events
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end of
the financial year of the Company to which the balance sheet relates and the date of this report.
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Financial Statements
These financial statements have been endorsed by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
recommended for approval by the Audit Committee of the Board, and approved by the Board of Directors for presenting
before the Members and for Members' consideration, approval and adoption. The auditors of the Company, M/s. Rehman
Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq, Chartered Accountants, audited the financial statements and have issued an unqualified report
to the Members.

Auditors
The present auditors, M/s Rahman Sarfraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq, Chartered Accountants, shall retire at the conclusion of Annual
General Meeting and being eligible for reappointment have offered themselves for the same. The Board of Directors of your
Company, based on the recommendation of the audit committee of the Board, proposed M/s Rahman Sarfraz Rahim Iqbal
Rafiq, Chartered Accountants, for appointment /reappointment as auditors of the Company for the ensuing year.

Change of Financial Year
The Company has changed its financial year from December end to June end to align with the tax year, in line with the
requirements of the Tax Authority and the Group, for ease of tax reporting. In this regard, the Company has already obtained
approval from the Tax Authority and made the requisite disclosure in accordance with the Listed Companies Regulations.

Sub-division of Ordinary Shares
Your company sub-divided its ordinary shares by reducing the par value from Rs. 10 per share to Re. 1 per share with effect
from June 16, 2025. Complete disclosure has been provided under note 12 to the Audited Accounts.

Entity Credit Rating
The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has maintained credit rating of the Company as for long term A- (A minus) and
for short term A1 (A one) ratings have been assigned. These ratings reflect low expectation of credit risk and strong capacity
for timely repayments of financial commitments.

Broker Fiduciary Rating (BFR)
PACRA has maintained the Fiduciary Rating of the Company as BFR2+. The outlook on the assigned ratings is 'Stable'. This
certification has endorsed the Company's Strong quality of management and client services, and high likelihood of sustaining
operations.

Broker Management Rating (BMR)
PACRA has maintained the management rating of the Company as BMR2+. The outlook on the assigned ratings is 'Stable'.
This certification has endorsed the Company's capability in upholding sound regulatory compliance, control environment,
and financial management. Further, governance and risk management frameworks are effective while Human Resource,
Information Technology and customer services are proactive.

Pattern of Shareholding
The detailed pattern of the shareholding and categories of shareholders of the Company as at June 30, 2025, as required
under the listing regulations, have been appended to this Annual Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Statement
The Company recognizes the significance of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and remains committed to conducting
its business in an ethical, transparent, and socially responsible manner. We take necessary measures to fulfill our responsibilities
toward our stakeholders, society, and the environment.

As a service-based organization, the Company ensures responsible energy consumption, environmental protection, and
workplace safety within its office premises. Initiatives are undertaken to promote sustainability, including efficient resource
utilization and a safe, healthy work environment for employees.

To uphold integrity and professionalism, the Company has implemented robust systems and procedures to prevent corruption,
maintain ethical business practices, and safeguard the interests of clients and stakeholders.

The Company maintains strong and collaborative relationships with its peers, banking partners, regulators, and other relevant
institutions, fostering trust and goodwill in the corporate ecosystem.

The Board of Directors acknowledges the importance of social welfare and remains committed to supporting charitable
initiatives, subject to the Company's financial position. During the period under review, the Company made donations to
charitable institutions and extended support to individuals in need, reinforcing its dedication to community welfare.
Furthermore, the Company contributes to the national economy by fulfilling its tax obligations, with details of taxes and
levies disclosed in the financial statements.

Sustainability Risks, Mitigation, and Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&I)
Your Board recognizes the importance of sustainability and responsible business practices in ensuring the long-term resilience
of Intermarket Securities Limited ("the Company"). In line with the Code of Corporate Governance and international best
practices, the following key areas have been identified:
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1. Sustainability Risks
The Company faces certain sustainability-related risks, including:

l Market Volatility: Exposure to fluctuations in domestic and international capital markets impacting revenues and
client activity.

l Regulatory Compliance Risks: Increased scrutiny by SECP, PSX, and other regulators, requiring robust governance
and compliance frameworks.

l Technology and Cybersecurity Risks: Growing reliance on digital trading platforms exposes the Company to
operational and data security vulnerabilities.

l Environmental & Social Expectations: Stakeholders, including institutional investors, increasingly demand
responsible business conduct, transparency, and ESG integration.

2. Mitigation Measures
To address these risks, the Company has adopted the following measures:

l Robust Risk Management Framework: Continuous monitoring of market, credit, and operational risks through
documented policies and oversight by the Board Risk Committee.

l Regulatory Alignment: Strengthened compliance function to ensure timely implementation of SECP/PSX directives,
AML/CFT requirements, and client protection measures.

l Technology & Cybersecurity Controls: Investment in secure trading systems, data protection tools, and periodic
IT audits to minimize system downtime and cyber threats.

l Sustainability & ESG Commitment: Adoption of responsible business practices, enhanced disclosure in line with
SECP ESG guidelines, and integration of sustainability considerations in strategic planning.

3. Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&I)
The Company is committed to fostering an inclusive, diverse, and equitable workplace where talent can thrive regardless
of gender, age, background, or beliefs. Key measures include:

l Equal Opportunity Employment: Recruitment and promotion policies ensuring merit-based decisions and elimination
of bias.

l Gender Diversity: Initiatives to increase representation of women across all levels, in line with SECP's requirement
of female directors on the Board.

l Inclusive Workplace: Implementation of the Workplace Harassment Policy in compliance with the law, supported
by employee awareness and reporting mechanisms.

l Employee Development & Wellbeing: Training, mentorship programs, and flexible work arrangements to support
employee growth and work-life balance.

The Board remains committed to continuously enhancing its sustainability, risk management, and DE&I initiatives to safeguard
stakeholder interests and strengthen long-term corporate resilience.

Board Performance Evaluation
In compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Board has carried out
its annual performance evaluation. The Board concluded that it has been effective in performing its roles, responsibilities,
and fiduciary duties, and continues to provide strategic guidance, oversight of management, and safeguard the interests
of all stakeholders.

Related party Disclosure
The transactions between the related parties were carried out at arm's length prices. The Company has fully complied with
the best practices on transfer pricing.

Corporate Governance
The Directors confirm compliance with the Corporate & Financial Reporting Framework of the Code of Corporate Governance
for the annexed below:

a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the results
of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements except for
the changes given in notes to the financial statements, if any; and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgments.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of financial
statements and any departures there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

g) Key operating and financial data for the last six years in a summarized form is annexed.
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h) There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies, and charges which are outstanding as on June 30,
2025, except for those disclosed in financial statements.

i) The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for its eligible employees. Value of investments as per
un-audited financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2025 amounts to approximately Rs. 58,657,211/-.

j) During the period Six (6) meetings of Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director was as follows:

*Syed Raza Haider Jafri resigned on 21-07-2025.
- Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not attend the meetings.

- During the period, two (2) meetings of Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each Member was as follows:

- Leave of absence was granted to Members who could not attend the Audit Committee meetings.

- During the period, one (1) meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HRRC) was held.

*Syed Raza Haider Jafri resigned on 21-07-2025. The Board appointed Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq as Chairman of the 
Committee, and Mr. Shehzad Hussain will continue to be a member of the committee.

- Leave of absence was granted to Members who could not attend the HRR Committee meetings.

- Further, the board of directors has also approved formation of new board committees, like the Risk Management
Committee, Nomination Committee, and ESG Committee along with respective TORs of the committee, effective from
September 01, 2025, as per the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance regulations.

k) Pattern of shareholding is annexed at the end of the report.

l) Newly elected directors has gone through a full-day orientation program held on May 03, 2025. The Company has a
plan to send newly appointed/elected directors who don't have DTP certification to attend Directors Training Program
till December 20, 2025.

m) Two directors and an executive has sought certification in respect of the Directors' Training Program.

S. No. Name of Director
No. of meetings

eligible to attend

No. of
meetings
attended

1 Mrs. Erum Bilwani 6 5

2 Mr. Shehzad Hussain 6 6

3 Mr. Muhammad Rehan Alam 6 6

4 Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq 6 5

5 Mr. Muhammad Ahmed Masood 6 6

6 *Syed Raza Haider Jafri 6 6

7 Mr. Wajid Hussain 6 6

S. No. Name of Director
No. of meetings

eligible to attend

No. of
meetings
attended

1 Mr. Wajid Hussain 1 1

2 Mr. Muhammad Rehan Alam 1 1

3 Mr. Shehzad Hussain 1 1

4 *Syed Raza Haider Jafri 1 1

S. No. Name of Director
No. of meetings

eligible to attend

No. of
meetings
attended

1. Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq 2 2

2. Mr. Shehzad Hussain 2 2

3. Mr. Muhammad Rehan Alam 2 2

4. Mr. Muhammad Ahmed Masood 2 2
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n) The Company is not in default or likely to default in any loans, sukuks or other debt instruments.

o) The Board has made out and attached to the financial statements the Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

p) Share transaction(s) (if any), in the shares of the Company, has been reported by the Directors and Executives, including
their respective spouses and minor children during the review period June 30, 2025 are annexed in pattern of shareholding.

 (For the clause 'P' above under Code of Corporate Governance the expression 'Executive' includes, in addition to
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary
by whatever name called, all other employees of the Company having basic salary of Rs. 1,200,000/- or above in a
financial year.)

Economic Overview
Pakistan's economy has underwent noticeable stabilization, underpinned by the three-year US$7bn IMF EFF secured in
September 2024 and the government's commitment to fiscal and monetary discipline. The State Bank's aggressive tightening
stance was instrumental in taming inflation. Consequently, CPI eased sharply from its peak of 38.0% in May 2023 to 3.2%
YoY by June 2025, and led to a sharp reduction in interest rates which halved to 11% from its peak of 22%, providing
much-needed relief to households and businesses. External accounts also improved materially, with Pakistan registering a
rare current account surplus of US$1.1bn during 1HCY25. This was supported by a robust 22% YoY increase in workers'
remittances, which reached US$20.4bn, coupled with restrained imports and a modest recovery in exports. The PKR exhibited
stability, consolidating around PKR 280/USD.

While these developments reflect a successful stabilization phase, the durability of this progress hinges on continued
compliance with the IMF benchmarks and implementation of structural reforms. Key priorities include broadening the tax
base, accelerating privatization, and ensuring fiscal prudence. These measures will be crucial in safeguarding macroeconomic
stability, strengthening external buffers, and paving the way for a transition from stabilization to sustainable, inclusive growth.

Market Performance
The KSE100 Index delivered a strong performance in 1HCY25, extending the rally witnessed in 2024. The benchmark KSE-
100 Index advanced 9.1% to close at 125,627 points, underpinned by improving macroeconomic fundamentals, moderating
inflation, and expectations of a sustained monetary easing cycle. Market participation remained buoyant, with average daily
volumes rising 30% YoY to 577mn shares, while average daily traded value climbed to PKR28.6bn (US$102mn), reflecting
robust institutional activity. In terms of investor flows, companies led with net purchases of US$66mn, followed by mutual
funds (US$47mn) and individuals (US$41mn). Conversely, foreign institutional investors booked profits amid the sharp market
uptrend and U.S tariff related uncertainties.

Future Prospect and Outlook
In 1HCY25, Intermarket Securities Limited continued to consolidate following its successful merger with EFG Hermes Pakistan
in 2024, placing the Company on a strong footing to capitalize on elevated equity trading activity at the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. The market outlook remains contingent on the government's ability to sustain reform momentum and position
the economy on a stable growth trajectory, which could keep investor participation robust; however, any reversal in hard-
won macroeconomic stability would weigh on both equity market performance and brokerage activity. Overall, we remain
constructive on the outlook, supported by resilient investor sentiment, improved trading volumes, and a more stable
macroeconomic backdrop.

Acknowledgements
The Board of Directors of your Company wishes to place on record its gratitude to the regulators, its bankers, members,
clients and business partners for their continued cooperation and support. Further, the Board appreciates the valuable, loyal,
and commendable services rendered to the Company by its employees and look forward to their continued support and
participation in sustaining the growth of the Company in the coming years.

In conclusion, we pray to almighty Allah for his blessings, guidance, health and prosperity to us, our Company, Country and
Nation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

______________________ ___________
Chief Executive Officer                  Director

Karachi:  September 01, 2025
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Six Years at a Galance

June 30,
2025

PARTICULARS

Operating Performance (Rupees in 000) 

Revenue  643,561  996,212  455,087  266,850  432,231  415,444

Operating expenses  435,849  701,816  354,667  249,600  341,479  301,622

Financial expenses  35,135  134,128  74,951  35,061  4,101  26,370

Other income  57,558  113,106  17,801  4,089  7,734  8,414

Gain / (loss) on investments - net  (10,075)  240,042  181,516  (170,009)  (66,734)  (1,635)

Profit / (loss) before lavies and tax  220,060  513,416  224,786  (183,731)  27,650  94,234

Profit / (loss) after lavies and tax  155,372  477,023  203,295  (197,958)  (160,491)  72,970

Per Ordinary Shares (Rupees)

Earnings / (loss) per share (Note2)  0.12  4.06  1.87  (0.18)  (0.15)  0.07

Break-up value per share (Note 2)  1.25  0.89  0.70  0.88 0.86

Dividends (Percentage)

Cash 20%(i) (D)  -    -    -    -    -

Bonus shares  -    -    -    -    -    -

Assets & Liabilities (Rupees in 000)

Total assets  3,362,260  3,940,522  2,138,898  1,201,579  1,396,762  1,700,716

Current assets  3,071,971  3,726,550  2,051,579  1,136,581  1,316,672  1,589,644

Current liabilities  1,748,678  2,283,421  1,163,026  437,657  437,261  721,984

Financial Position (Rupees in 000)

Shareholder's equity  1,501,456  1,603,587  965,837  761,542  959,501  939,526

Share capital  665,131  665,131  503,405  503,405  503,405  503,405

Reserves

Shares outstanding- (Number in 000)  1,287,510,240  1,287,510,240  1,087,353,740  1,087,353,740  1,087,353,740  1,087,353,740

            (Ref Note 1 and 3)

Return on capital employed-(%) 10.35% 29.75% 21.05% -25.99% -16.73% 7.77%

Return on total assets-(%) 4.62% 12.11% 9.50% -16.47% -11.49% 4.29%

Current ratio-times  1.76  1.63  1.76  2.60  3.01  2.20

December 31,
2020

December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2024

Notes

1. The sharecapital of the year ended Dec 19 to Dec 23 have been retroactively restated to reflect the effect of merger.

2. On June 16, 2025, the Company sub-divided its issued ordinary shares by reducing par value from Rs. 10/share to
Re. 1/share. Consequently, the ordinary shares increased proportionately, with no change in aggregate share capital.
Accordingly, the ordinary shares of the comparative periods are restated. (Refer Note 12 of the Financial Statements).

3. The Financial statements as of June 30, 2025 represents financial results for the six-month period from January 01
2025 to June 30, 2025 being transitional year as company has undergone change in Financial year from December
31 to June 30. Accordingly, the comparative information is not comparable. (Refer Note2.4 to the Financial Statements).
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Gender Pay Gap Statement
Gender pay gap statement under Circular 10 of 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the half year ended 2025:

i) Mean Gender Pay Gap: 31%

ii) Median Gender Pay Gap: 18%

iii) Any other data/Details as deemed relevant: the above ratio reflect the overall gender pay gap across 

the organization

______________________

Chief Executive Officer

September 01, 2025
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 for the
transitional period from January 1, 2025 to June 30, 2025

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following:
     a. Male: 6 directors

   b. Female: 1 director

2. The composition of board is as follows:

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including
this company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate
it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company.
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval
or updating is maintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by board/
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board
for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the board.

8. The board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and
these Regulations. In this respect, all directors except Executive Directors are paid a board meeting attendance fee of
Rs. 100,000/- for the quarterly meetings they attend.

9. The Company encourages its directors to attend the Directors' Training Program. To date, two directors and one executive
completed the prescribed training. As per regulations, newly appointed directors are allowed one year to complete the
training, i.e., by December 20, 2025. Accordingly, the Company intends to nominate the remaining directors to complete
the program within this timeframe. It is also noted that the fourth director, Mr. Syed Raza Haider Jafri, resigned on July
21, 2025.

10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration
and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq Chairman
Mr. Shehzad Hussain Member
Mr. Rehan Alam Member
Mr. Ahmed Masood Member

a) Independent Directors 1) Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq

2) Mr. Ahmed Masood

b) Non-Executive Directors 3) Mr. Shehzad Hussain

4) Mr. Muhammad Rehan Alam

c) Female Non-Executive Director 5) Mrs. Erum Bilwani

d) Executive Director 6) Mr. Wajid Hussain

7) Mr. Syed Raza Haider Jafri

CATEGORY NAMES



HALF YEAR REPORT (AUDITED) JUNE 2025 26

S E C U R I T I E S  L T D

b) HR and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Muhammad Ashfaq Chairman
Mr. Shehzad Hussain Member
Mr. Rehan Alam Member
Mr. Wajid Hussain Member
Mr. Raza Jafri Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for
compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee was as per following:

a) Audit Committee Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee Yearly

15. The board has outsourced the internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children)
of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except
in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all other requirements under Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the Code of Corporate
Governance have been duly complied with. During the period under review, the designation of Mr. Shehzad Hussain
was changed from Independent Director to Non-Executive Director as he becomes ineligible to be an independent
director upon becoming a director in an associated private limited company. As per Regulation 6 of the Code, the
Company is required to have at least two (02) or one-third of the total number of directors, whichever is higher, as
Independent Directors. With a Board size of seven (07), one-third equates to 2.33. The Company has currently two (02)
Independent Directors, deemed to be sufficient to enable the Board and its Committees to effectively discharge their
functions. However, the company shall induct an additional Independent Director, if and when considered necessary.
Further, subsequent to the reporting period, Mr. Raza Jafri, one of the Executive Directors, resigned from the Board and
said casual vacancy shall be filled within the stipulated timeframe in accordance with the applicable regulations.

19. Explanation for non-compliance (non-mandatory provision) with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,
32, 33 and 36 are below;

1) In respect of Regulation 10A, which requires the establishment of a Sustainability Committee, compliance with this
requirement is under process. The matter is scheduled to be placed before the Board for consideration and approval
in the forthcoming meeting, after which the a dedicated Committee will be constituted to assume and discharge all
responsibilities prescribed under Regulation 10A.

2) The Company has not yet constituted a separate Nomination Committee. However, the Board currently comprises
members with relevant expertise in areas covered under Regulation 29(2) of the Code of Corporate Governance. The
formation of a dedicated Nomination Committee is under consideration and is expected to be approved in the upcoming
Board meeting.

3) The Company has not yet constituted a separate Risk Management Committee. However, the Board currently includes
members with relevant expertise in areas specified under Regulation 30(2) of the Code of Corporate Governance. The
formation of a dedicated Risk Management Committee is under consideration and is expected to be approved in the
upcoming Board meeting.

_______________
Signature (s)
ERUM BILWANI
Chairperson

Karachi: September 01, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of M/s. Intermarket Securities Limited (Formerly EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited)

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 ('the Regulations') prepared by the Board of Directors of Intermarket Securities
Limited (Formerly EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited) for the transition period from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025
in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements
contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the transition period from January 01, 2025 to
June 30, 2025.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the non-mandatory requirements of the Regulations
as stated in the below-referred paragraphs of the Statement of Compliance:

Description of the Non-Compliance
Paragraph

No.
Nature of the
Requirement

S.
No.

As per Regulation 19, it is encouraged that all directors serving on
the Board obtain the prescribed certification under a Directors'
Training Program offered by institutions, whether local or foreign,
that meet the criteria specified and approved by the Commission.
A newly appointed director may obtain the certification within one
year from the date of appointment to the Board.

To date, two directors and one executive have successfully completed
the prescribed training. In accordance with the regulations, newly
appointed directors are required to complete the Directors' Training
Program within one year of their appointment, i.e., by December
20, 2025. The Company therefore intends to nominate the remaining
directors to complete the program within the stipulated timeframe.
It may be noted that one of the Director Syed Raza Haider Jafri
resigned on July 21, 2025 and the Company intends to fill the casual
vacancy within the stipulated timeframe in accordance with the
relevant provisions.
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Description of the Non-Compliance
Paragraph

No.
Nature of the
Requirement

S.
No.

As per Regulation 6(1) of the Regulations, a listed company is required
to have at least two independent directors or one-third of the total
board members, whichever is higher. Furthermore, where one-third
of the board results in a fraction, the company must provide an
explanation in its statement of compliance if such fraction has not
been rounded up to the next whole number.

Based on the seven members on the Board of the Company, it is
mandatorily required to have one-third thereof as independent
directors, which comes to 2.33 members out of seven. As of December
31, 2024, there were 3 independent directors on the Company's
Board. One of the said directors is now a non-executive director,
which reduces the said members to 2. The company explained that
its existing strength of two independent directors is, however,
considered sufficient to fulfill the responsibilities of the respective
committees and the Board and it shall appoint an independent
director as and when it is considered necessary by it.

As per the Regulation 10A, the Board is responsible for governance
and oversight of sustainability risks and opportunities and, for this
purpose, is required / encouraged to take a number of measures
including, in particular, implementation of policies to promote diversity,
equity and inclusion (DE&I); taking steps to proactively understand
and address the principal as well as emerging sustainability risks and
opportunities; ensuring that the Company's sustainability and DE&I
related strategies, priorities and targets as well as performance against
these targets are periodically reviewed and monitored; and
establishment of dedicated sustainability committee having at least
one female director, or assignment of additional responsibilities to
an existing board committee.

In respect of Regulation 10A, which requires the establishment of
a Sustainability Committee, compliance with this requirement is in
process. The matter is scheduled to be presented to the Board for
consideration and approval in the forthcoming meeting, after which
a dedicated Committee will be constituted to assume and discharge
all responsibilities prescribed under Regulation 10A.

As per the Regulation no. 29 of the Regulations, the Board may
constitute a separate committee, designated as the Nomination
Committee, of such number and class of directors, as it may deem
appropriate in the circumstances.

As stated in paragraph 19 of the Statement of Compliance, The
Company has not yet constituted a separate Nomination Committee.
However, the Board currently comprises members with relevant
expertise in areas covered under Regulation 29(2) of the Code of
Corporate Governance. The formation of a dedicated Nomination
Committee is under consideration and is expected to be approved
in the upcoming Board meeting.

(2) 18Mandatory

Cont�d...P/3
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Description of the Non-Compliance
Paragraph

No.
Nature of the
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S.
No.

As per the Regulation no. 30 of the Regulations, the Board may
constitute a separate committee, designated as the Risk Management
Committee, of such number and class of directors, as it may deem
appropriate in the circumstances.

As stated in paragraph 19 of the Statement of Compliance, The
Company has not yet constituted a separate Risk Management
Committee. However, the Board currently includes members with
relevant expertise in areas specified under Regulation 30(2) of the
Code of Corporate Governance. The formation of a dedicated Risk
Management Committee is under consideration and is expected to
be approved in the upcoming Board meeting.

(5) 19
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Karachi.

Date : September 02, 2025
UDIN : CR202510213N9fFX4q0A

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property and equipment 4  138,040,461  123,001,088  22,656,021
Right-of-use assets 5  134,884,778  67,043,100  19,933,745
Intangible assets 6  7,022,009  7,246,677  8,008,570
Long term advances and deposits 7  10,342,349  16,680,268  6,593,405

290,289,597  213,971,133  57,191,741
Current assets

Short term investments 8  265,110,169  280,373,189  441,989,715
Trade debts 9  940,092,739  735,039,582  551,990,331
Receivables against margin financing 553,725,386  640,570,348  402,392,261
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 10  1,142,721,494  1,826,417,194  522,209,063
Short term loan -   -    42,646,012
Cash and bank balances 11  170,320,957  244,150,136  120,479,010

3,071,970,745  3,726,550,449  2,081,706,392

Total assets 3,362,260,342  3,940,521,582  2,138,898,133

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized capital
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Re.1/- each 12  2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
(December 31, 2024: ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each)

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 12  1,287,510,240 1,287,510,240  1,087,353,740

Capital reserve
Discount on issue of shares  (622,379,278)  (622,379,278)  (583,949,230)

665,130,962  665,130,962  503,404,510
Revenue reserve
Unappropriated profit 836,325,499  938,455,970  461,432,866

1,501,456,461  1,603,586,932  964,837,376
Non-current liabilities

Lease liability 13  98,841,906  34,022,474  10,101,776
Deferred liabilities 14  13,283,751  19,490,705  933,060

112,125,657  53,513,179  11,034,836
Current liabilities

Short term borrowings - secured 15  534,255,888  536,612,686  328,766,362
Trade and other payables 16  1,064,932,244  1,681,568,021  782,458,119
Taxation - net 17  81,160,024  17,089,186  26,338,676
Unclaimed dividend 33,492,123  11,019,239  -
Accrued markup on short term borrowings 13,458,895  17,165,702  18,919,858
Current portion of lease liability 13  21,379,050  19,966,637  6,542,906

1,748,678,224  2,283,421,471  1,163,025,921
Contingencies and commitments 18  -    -    -

Total equity and liabilities 3,362,260,342  3,940,521,582  2,138,898,133

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2025

Note

(Restated)
December 31,

2024
Rupees

(Restated)
December 31,

2023
Rupees

S E C U R I T I E S  L T D

HALF YEAR REPORT (AUDITED) JUNE 2025 35

June 30,
2025

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director



Operating revenue 19  643,561,264  996,212,817

Income from investments - net 20  (10,074,694)  240,042,197

633,486,570  1,236,255,014

Administrative expenses 21  (417,451,249)  (641,320,521)

Other expenses 22  (18,397,963)  (60,495,252)

Other income 23  57,557,612  113,105,944

255,194,970  647,545,185

Finance costs 24  (35,135,486)  (134,128,087)

Profit before levies and taxation 220,059,484  513,417,098

Levies 25  (1,332,167)  (970,785)

Profit before taxation 218,727,317  512,446,313

Taxation - net 26  (63,355,740)  (35,423,209)

Profit after taxation 155,371,577  477,023,104

Earning per share - basic and diluted 27  0.12  0.40

S E C U R I T I E S  L T D
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the period ended June 30, 2025

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note
Jan. 01, 2025 to

Jun. 30, 2025
Rupees

(Restated)
Jan. 01, 2024 to
Dec. 31, 2024

Rupees

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the period ended June 30, 2025

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Jan. 01, 2025 to
Jun. 30, 2025

Rupees

(Restated)
Jan. 01, 2024 to
Dec. 31, 2024

Rupees

Profit after taxation 155,371,577  477,023,104

Other comprehensive income -    -

Total comprehensive income for the period/year 155,371,577  477,023,104

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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Balance as at December 31, 2023  1,087,353,740  (583,949,230)  461,432,866  964,837,376

Transactions with owners
Fair value of the consideration effectively transferred 
  in the reverse merger  200,156,500  (38,430,048)  -    161,726,452

Total comprehensive income for the
  year ended December 31, 2024
    - Profit after taxation (restated)  -    -    477,023,104  477,023,104
    - Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    -

-    -    477,023,104  477,023,104

Balance as at December 31, 2024 (restated)  1,287,510,240  (622,379,278)  938,455,970  1,603,586,932

Total comprehensive income for the
   period ended June 30, 2025
     - Profit after taxation  -    -    155,371,577  155,371,577
     - Other comprehensive income -    -    -    -   

-   -    155,371,577  155,371,577
Transaction with owners
    - Interim cash dividend @ 20% for the quarter 
         ended March 31, 2025 -    -    (257,502,048)  (257,502,048)

Balance as at June 30, 2025  1,287,510,240  (622,379,278)  836,325,499  1,501,456,461

Rupees

TotalDiscount on
Issue of Shares

Capital reserve

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the period ended June 30, 2025

Unappropriated
profit

Revenue reserveIssued

Subscribed and

paid up

Share Capital

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the period ended June 30, 2025

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before levies and taxation 220,059,484  513,417,098
Adjustments for:
-  Change in unrealized gain on remeasurement of short term 20  2,982,448  (59,231,016)
      investments - net
- Capital gain on sale of short term investments - net 20  9,638,489  (170,603,926)
- Depreciation on property and equipment 21  10,364,322  11,408,007
- Depreciation on right-of-use-of-asset 21  7,048,014  7,336,145
- Amortization of intangible assets 21  224,668  357,940
- Receivables and deposits written off 22  203,400  231,147
- Intangible written off 22  -    5,689,370
- Provision for expected credit losses on trade debts 22  13,560,992  15,501,235
- Gain on disposal of property and equipment 23  (49,361)  (119,773)
- Bargain purchase gain on reverse merger 23  -    (25,737,911)
- Interest income on deposits with NCCPL 23.1  (23,576,396)  (61,168,064)
- Interest accrue on investment in T-bills 23.1  (9,403,903)  (571,508)
- Interest accrue on loan to related party 23.1  (17,286,257)  (15,560,970)
- Finance costs 24  35,135,486  134,128,087
- Property and equipment written off -    610,979

28,841,902  (157,730,258)

248,901,386  355,686,840
Changes in working capital items
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
 - Short term investments -  net 12,045,986  656,617,119
 - Trade debts (218,614,149)  (187,730,830)
 - Receivables against margin financing 86,844,962  (188,419,564)
 - Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 523,215,980  (914,005,027)

403,492,779  (633,538,302)
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities
 - Trade and other payables  (612,857,419)  766,420,374

 39,536,746  488,568,912
Income tax - net  (8,024,023)  (28,664,389)
Advance from employee 1,200,000  2,500,000
Long term advances and deposits - net 6,337,919  3,100,000

Net cash generated from operating activities 39,050,642  465,504,523

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment 4  (26,742,156)  (10,755,356)
Additions to right-of-use assets - initial direct cost (64,607,272)  (876,400)
Loan disbursement made during the year to related parties -    (237,000,000)
Loan recovered during the year from related parties 186,679,324  757,450
Cash and bank balances acquired in reverse merger -    133,468,948
Interest income received on deposits with NCCPL  14,459,649  50,234,845
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 1,387,822  1,458,234

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities 111,177,367  (62,712,279)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liability - Principal portion 55,949,425  (16,224,671)
Repayment of long term loan -    (325,000,000)
Dividend paid (235,029,164)  (27,885)
Loan paid to related party (3,778,358)  (20,000)
Finance costs paid (38,842,293)  (145,694,886)

Net cash used in financing activities (221,700,390)  (486,967,442)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (71,472,381)  (84,175,198)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (292,462,550)  (208,287,352)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 28  (363,934,931)  (292,462,550)

Note
Jan. 01, 2025 to

Jun. 30, 2025
Rupees

(Restated)
Jan. 01, 2024 to
Dec. 31, 2024

Rupees
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended June 30, 2025

1. Legal Status and Principal Activities

1.1 Intermarket Securities Limited (formerly 'EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited') (the �Company�) was originally
incorporated as a private limited company under the name 'Invest and Finance Securities (Private) Limited' on
September 27, 1999, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (subsequently repealed by the Companies Act, 2017
issued in May 2017).

On November 27, 2006, the Company was converted into a public unlisted company and, accordingly, renamed
'Invest and Finance Securities Limited'. The Company was subsequently listed on Karachi Stock Exchange Limited
(now Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited) with effect from March 20, 2008.

In May 2017, the majority shareholding of the Company was acquired by EFG Hermes Brokerage Holding LLC, a
foreign entity based in Dubai, UAE. Following this change in ownership, the Company was renamed 'EFG Hermes
Pakistan Limited'.

With effect from July 01, 2024, EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited was merged with Intermarket Securities Limited (IMS),
a public unlisted company, pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement ('the Reverse Merger Scheme') sanctioned by
the Honorable High Court of Sindh on October 09, 2024. In accordance with the terms of the Reverse Merger
Scheme, IMS was dissolved without winding up, and the name of the Company was changed from 'EFG Hermes
Pakistan Limited' to 'Intermarket Securities Limited'.

The principal activities of the Company are investments, share brokerage, Initial Public Offer (IPO) underwriting,
advisory and consultancy services. The registered office of the Company is situated at 5th Floor, Ext. Block, Bahria
Complex IV, Ch. Khaliq-ur-Zaman Road, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan.

1.2 The geographical location of Company's other offices are as follows:

        Office #                         Location                    Square feet 

    1001 to 1010 10th Floor, New Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road,   232/2320 square
Karachi.                                                                                                       feet.

     139 and 140 3rd Floor, Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi.        230/230 square feet

            319 6th Floor of Siddiq Trade Centre, Bearing Plot No.72, Situated At    819 square feet
Main Boulevard, Gulberg Lahore, Punjab, Pakistan.

             3L3 3rd Floor of Lahore Stock Exchange - South Tower, Situated At 19    483 square feet
Khayaban Aiwan-E-lqbal Road, Lahore, Pakistan.

            409 4th Floor, Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi.   230 square feet

            212 2nd Floor Balad Trade Centre Plot No. # 118 Block 3,                             150 square feet
BMCHS, Karachi.

   Property No. 28 M.M Towers, Property No. 28, Block K, M.M Alam Road,                2000 square feet
                         Gulberg II, Lahore.

   Plot/Property #                       Location                 Square Yards

      Plot No. 80 Old Survey No. 37-A-1, Hawksbay Beach, Karachi. 100-0 square yards

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
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- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of, and directives, issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, provisions of,
and directives, issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement of items in the financial statements

Items in these financial statements have been measured at their historical cost, except for short term investments
in quoted equity securities which are carried at fair value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company�s
functional and presentation currency.

2.4 Change in financial year-end and comparative information

As stated in note 1.1 above, effective July 01, 2024, the Company (previously known as EFG Hermes Pakistan
Limited) merged with Intermarket Securities Limited ('IMS'), a public unlisted company, pursuant to a Scheme of
Arrangement (the �Reverse Merger Scheme�) sanctioned by the Honorable High Court of Sindh on October 09,
2024. Under the terms of the scheme, IMS had been identified as the accounting acquirer. Prior to the merger, IMS
followed a financial year ending on June 30, while the Company�s financial year-end was December 31. To align
with IMS�s historical year-end, the Company has changed its financial year-end from December 31 to June 30.
Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared for a transitional period of six months, covering January
01, 2025 to June 30, 2025.

Accordingly, the comparative figures presented in the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity, and the statement of cash flows relate to the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2024. Due to the difference in reporting periods, the current period�s figures are not directly comparable
with those of the prior year.

2.5 Use of estimates and judgments

In preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the
application of the  Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

(a) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in these financial statements is included in the following notes:

(b) Assumptions and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk
of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year.

Area of estimation
      uncertainty

      Trade debts Estimation of expected credited losses

Brief description of the assumption or the source of estimation uncertainty

Area of judgement                      Brief description of the judgement applied

  Deferred tax assets Whether deferred tax assets should be recorded on realized and unrealized losses on short
term investments in securities - availability of future taxable profit on securities with in next
three tax years against which such losses can be utilised

  Timing of revenue "Advisory and consultancy services:
       recognition Whether performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over time that is whether

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity�s 
performance as the entity performs"
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2.6 New accounting pronouncements

2.6.1 Amendments to existing standards that became effective during the year

The following new or amended standards and interpretations became effective for the financial year and are
considered relevant to the Company�s financial statements:

- IAS 1 � Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments issued January 2020 and
October 2022, effective January 1, 2024):

Under the previous requirements of IAS 1, a liability was classified as current if the Company did not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Following the amendments,
the requirement for the right to be �unconditional� has been removed. Instead, the amendments specify that the
right to defer settlement must be substantive and must exist as of the reporting date. Such a right may depend on
the Company�s compliance with conditions (covenants) set out in a loan agreement.

In October 2022, the IASB clarified that only covenants that the Company is required to comply with on or before
the reporting date affect whether a liability is classified as current or non-current. Covenants that are tested after
the reporting date (i.e., future covenants) do not impact classification at that date. However, if non-current liabilities
are subject to future covenants, the Company must provide additional disclosures to enable users to understand
the risk that such liabilities could become repayable within twelve months after the reporting date.

- IFRS 16 � Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments issued September 2022, effective January
1, 2024):

The amendments affect how a seller-lessee accounts for variable lease payments arising from a sale-and-leaseback
transaction. At the time of initial recognition, the seller-lessee is required to include variable lease payments when
measuring the lease liability. Subsequently, the seller-lessee applies the general requirements for lease liability
accounting in a way that ensures no gain or loss is recognised in relation to the right-of-use asset it retains. These
amendments introduce a new accounting model for variable lease payments and may require seller-lessees to reassess
and, in some cases, restate previously recognised sale-and-leaseback transactions.

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations have not been early
adopted by the Company and are do not have any material impact on the Company's financial statements.

2.6.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not
yet effective

The following standards and amendments have been issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
July 1, 2024 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

IAS 21 � The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendments: Lack of Exchangeability, effective
January 1, 2025):

Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates address circumstances where a currency
is not exchangeable, often due to government restrictions. In such cases, entities are required to estimate the spot
exchange rate that would apply in an orderly transaction at the measurement date. The amendments permit flexibility
by allowing the use of observable exchange rates without adjustment or other estimation methods, provided these
meet the overall estimation objective. When assessing this, entities should consider factors such as the existence
of multiple exchange rates, their intended use, nature, and frequency of updates. The amendments also introduce
new disclosure requirements, including details of the non-exchangeability, its financial impact, the spot rate applied,
the estimation approach used, and related risks.

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 � Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (effective
January 1, 2026):

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments � Classification and
Measurement provide clarifications and updates in several areas. They refine the requirements around the timing
of recognition and derecognition of certain financial assets and liabilities, introducing a new exception for financial
liabilities settled via electronic cash transfer systems. The amendments also clarify and expand the guidance on
assessing whether a financial asset meets the �solely payments of principal and interest� (SPPI) criterion. In addition,
new disclosure requirements are introduced for instruments with contractual terms that can alter cash flows, such
as those linked to environmental, social, and governance (ESG) targets. Further updates are also made to the
disclosure requirements for equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

IFRS 17 � Insurance Contracts (effective January 1, 2026 in Pakistan, as directed by SECP vide SRO
1715(I)/2023):

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of Insurance contracts within the scope of the Standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides
relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial
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statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity�s financial position, financial performance
and cash flows. SECP vide its SRO 1715(I)/2023 dated November 21, 2023 has directed that IFRS 17 shall be followed
for the period commencing January 1, 2026 by companies engaged in insurance / takaful and re-insurance / re-
takaful business.

Annual Improvements � Volume Eleven (effective January 1, 2026):

- Hedge Accounting by a First-time Adopter (Amendments to IFRS 1) - The amendments are intended to address
potential confusion arising from an inconsistency between the wording in IFRS 1 and the requirements for hedge
accounting in IFRS 9.

- Gain or Loss on Derecognition (Amendments to IFRS 7) - To update the language on unobservable inputs and
to include a cross reference to paragraphs 72 and 73 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

- Introduction (Amendments to Guidance on implementing IFRS 7) - To clarify that the guidance does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced paragraphs of IFRS 7, nor does it create additional requirements.

- Disclosure of Deferred Difference between Fair Value and Transaction Price (Amendments to Guidance on
implementing IFRS 7) - Paragraph IG14 of the Guidance on implementing IFRS 7 has been amended mainly to
make the wording consistent with the requirements in paragraph 28 of IFRS 7 and with the concepts and
terminology used in IFRS 9 and IFRS 13.

- Credit Risk Disclosures (Amendments to Guidance on implementing IFRS 7) - Paragraph IG20B of the Guidance
on implementing IFRS 7 has been amended to simplify the explanation of which aspects of the IFRS requirements
are not illustrated in the example.

- Transaction Price (Amendments to IFRS 9) - Paragraph 5.1.3 of IFRS 9 has been amended to replace the reference
to 'transaction price as defined by IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' with 'the amount determined
by applying IFRS 15'. The use of the term "transaction price' in relation to IFRS 15 was potentially confusing and
so it has been removed. The term was also deleted from Appendix A of IFRS 9.

- Determination of a 'De Facto Agent' (Amendments to IFRS 10) - The amendment is intended to remove the
inconsistency with the requirement in paragraph B73 for an entity to use judgement to determine whether other
parties are acting as de facto agents.

- Cost Method (Amendments to IAS 7) - Paragraph 37 of IAS 7 has been amended to replace the term 'cost
method' with 'at cost', following the prior deletion of the definition of 'cost method".

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations have not been early
adopted by the Company and are not likely to have any material impact on the Company's financial statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards
and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt by the SECP as at June 30, 2025:

IFRS 18 � Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

The new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, IFRS 18, focuses on updates to the
statement of profit or loss. It introduces key concepts such as the structure of the statement of profit or loss, required
disclosures for certain profit or loss performance measures reported outside the financial statements (management-
defined performance measures), and enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation applicable to the
primary financial statements and notes.

Major Impact on Companies� Financial Statements:

IFRS 18 will require the Company to restructure their statement of profit or loss into operating, investing, and
financing categories, which may alter familiar subtotals such as operating profit. This standard focuses on disaggregation
will expand disclosures, requiring more detailed breakdowns of income, expenses, and significant transactions,
rather than broad groupings. Adoption will also demand updates to reporting systems and processes, increasing
compliance effort, but ultimately enhancing transparency, comparability, and investor confidence.

IFRS 19 � Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

IFRS 19 � Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures introduces reduced disclosure requirements for
eligible subsidiaries that apply IFRS Accounting Standards. It applies to subsidiaries without public accountability
whose parent prepares publicly available consolidated IFRS financial statements. Recognition and measurement
remain fully aligned with IFRS, while disclosures are significantly simplified. The standard aims to ease the reporting
burden without compromising the usefulness of information, and adoption is voluntary.
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The following new or amended standards and interpretations became effective during the year. However, the same
are not considered to be relevant to the Company's financial statements:

- Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)

- Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1)

- Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented .

3.1 Property and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost include expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation  is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified
in note 4. Depreciation is charged when the asset is available for use till the asset is disposed off. Further, when
the written down value of the item of assets falls below Rs. 25,000 the same is charged directly to the statement
of profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of  profit or loss in
the year in which the asset is derecognized.

The assets' residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
financial year end. The Company's estimate of residual value of property and equipment as at June 30, 2025 did
not require any adjustment.

3.2 Intangible assets  

3.2.1 Computer software

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Amortization is computed
using the reducing balance method over assets estimated useful life at the rates stated in note 5.1, after taking into
accounts residual value, if any. The residual values, useful life and amortization methods are reviewed and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Amortization is charged from the date the assets are put to use while no amortization is charged after the date
when the assets are disposed off.

Gain and losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included in the statement of profit or loss.

3.2.2 Membership cards and privileges (TREC)

These are stated at cost less impairment, if any. The carrying amount is reviewed at each reporting date to assess
whether it is in excess of its recoverable amount, and where the carrying value exceeds estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.

3.3 Financial instruments

3.3.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement

The Company recognizes a financial asset when and only when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument evidencing investment.

Regular way purchase of investments are recognized using settlement date accounting i.e. on the date on which
settlement of the purchase transaction takes place. 
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The Company classifies its financial assets into either of following three categories:

(a) financial assets measured at amortized cost;
(b) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and
(c) financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within business model whose objective is to hold
assets to collect contractual cash flows, and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue thereof.

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income when it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash ?ows and selling ?nancial assets
and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue thereof.

(c) Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as aforesaid. However, for an investment in equity
instrument which is not held for trading, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value.

3.3.2 Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (determined using the effective interest method)
less accumulated impairment losses.

"Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses arising from such financial
assets are recognized in the statement of profit and loss."

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI

These are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses.

A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses,
until the financial asset is derecognised or reclassified.  When the financial asset is derecognised the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment. Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in
profit or loss.

(c) Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Net gains or losses arising from remeasurement of such financial assets as well as any interest income accruing
thereon are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. However, for an investment in equity instrument which
is not held for trading and for which the Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment, such gains or losses are recognized
in other comprehensive income. Further, when such investment is disposed off, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is not reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
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3.3.3 Impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses in respect of financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

For trade debts and receivables from margin financing, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'Simpli?ed Approach' to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance.

For other financial assets, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'General Approach' to measuring expected credit losses
whereby the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
However, if, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12?month
expected credit losses.

The Company measures expected credit losses on financial assets in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information at the reporting date about
the past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions. The Company recognises in profit
or loss, as an impairment loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

3.3.4 De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

The Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event.

3.4 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL).

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on de-recognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have expired
or when the financial liability's cash flows have been substantially modified.

3.5 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to
settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle liability simultaneously.

3.6 Trade debts and receivables against margin financing

These are carried at their transaction price less any allowance for lifetime expected credit losses. A receivable is
recognized on the settlement date as this is the point in time that the payment of the consideration by the customer
becomes due.

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortized cost. For the purpose of
the statement cash flows cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and short term borrowings.

3.8 Staff retirement benefits - Defined contribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into
a separate fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
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hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. As
a consequence, actuarial risk (that benefits will be less than expected) and investment risk (that assets will be
insufficient to meet expected benefits) fall, in substance, on the employee.

The Company operates a defined contribution plan i.e. recognized provident fund ("the Fund") for all of its eligible
employees in accordance with trust deed and rules made thereunder. Monthly contributions at the rate 10.00%
of basic salary are made to the Fund by the Company and the employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the Company during a period, the Company recognises the contribution
payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as an expense in profit or loss and as a liability
in the statement of financial position (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the end of the reporting period, the
Company recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

When contributions to a defined contribution plan are not expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted using
the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds (or when there is no deep market in such bonds, the government bonds) having term consistent
with the estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.

3.9 Levies and Taxation

Levies

Any tax charged under the income tax laws which is not based on the taxable income is classified as levy in the
Statement of profit or loss as these levies fall under the scope of IAS 37 �Provisions, Contingent liabilities and
Contingent Assets�/ IFRIC 21 �Levies�.

Current tax

In these financial statements , minimum tax on local sales revenue is recognized as levy under section 113 of the
Income Tax Ordinance and other sections of the said ordinance. Any excess charged under the normal tax regime
is recognized as current tax.

In these financial statements , Income tax under final tax regime is recognized as levy and the excess amount charged
is recognized as current tax.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax are not accounted for
if they arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and at the time of the
transaction, does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax is measured
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and unused tax losses
and credits. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Further, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the
current assessment of future taxable profits. If required, carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits to allow the benefit of part or all of that recognised
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available.

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to exercise significant judgement in the application
of tax laws and regulations when determining the Company�s current and deferred tax positions. The tax treatment
of certain transactions involves inherent uncertainties as these matters are subject to interpretation by the Federal
Board of Revenue.

In line with IFRIC 23 � Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, the Company assesses whether it is probable that
the tax authorities will accept the tax treatments adopted. Where such acceptance is uncertain, management reflects
the effect of this uncertainty in determining taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
applicable tax rates. This assessment requires the use of either the most likely outcome or the expected value method,
depending on which approach provides the most reliable prediction of the resolution of uncertainty.



S E C U R I T I E S  L T D

HALF YEAR REPORT (AUDITED) JUNE 2025 48

Provisions are recognised for anticipated tax exposures where it is not probable that the taxation authorities will
accept the treatment adopted. Any differences between the final outcome of tax matters and the amounts initially
recognised are accounted for in the period in which the determination is made, with corresponding adjustments
to current and deferred tax balances.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.10 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises
from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3.11 Operating revenue

Revenue from trading activities - brokerage commission

Commission revenue arising from sales / purchase of securities on client's behalf is recognized on the date of
settlement of transaction by the clearing house. 

Revenue from advisory and consultancy services

Revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied i.e. when services are provided.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the services to the customer and payment
by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices
for the time value of money.

Dividend income

Dividends received from investments measured at fair value through profit or loss and at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits,
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of a part of the cost of an investment. In this case, dividend is
recognized in other comprehensive income if it relates to an investment measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Mark up / interest income

Mark-up / interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at the
rate applicable.
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - owned assets

 As at December 31, 2023 

 Cost  6,903,077  14,585,038  413,853  5,286,068  5,192,040  9,359,068  12,674,940  54,414,084

 Accumulated depreciation   -    (12,340,096)  (174,131)  (1,394,547)  (3,972,441)  (5,441,964)  (8,434,884)  (31,758,063)

 Net book value  6,903,077  2,244,942  239,722  3,891,521  1,219,599  3,917,104  4,240,056  22,656,021

 For the year ended December 31, 2024 

 Opening net book value  6,903,077  2,244,942  239,722  3,891,521  1,219,599  3,917,104  4,240,056  22,656,021

 Additions: 

 - Acquisitions through reverse merger  -    -    13,119,411  4,020,731  2,710,000  24,451,004  16,000,000  60,301,146

 - Others  -    -    612,900  2,905,816  230,001  1,151,160  47,890,512  52,790,389

 -    -    13,732,311  6,926,547  2,940,001  25,602,164  63,890,512  113,091,535

 Disposals: 

 - Cost  -    (880,757)  (149,238)  (224,698)  (1,679,000)  (1,657,512)  -    (4,591,205)

 - Accumulated depreciation -    809,770  72,998  91,946  1,148,763  1,129,267  -    3,252,744

 -    (70,987)  (76,240)  (132,752)  (530,237)  (528,245)  -    (1,338,461)

 Depreciation  -    (726,982)  (683,029)  (663,157)  (441,885)  (5,025,657)  (3,867,297)  (11,408,007)

 Closing net book value  6,903,077  1,446,973  13,212,764  10,022,159  3,187,478  23,965,366  64,263,271  123,001,088

 As at December 31, 2024 

 Cost  6,903,077  13,704,281  13,996,926  11,987,917  6,453,041  33,303,720  76,565,452  162,914,414

 Accumulated depreciation  -    (12,257,308)  (784,162)  (1,965,758)  (3,265,563)  (9,338,354)  (12,302,181)  (39,913,326)

 Net book value  6,903,077  1,446,973  13,212,764  10,022,159  3,187,478  23,965,366  64,263,271  123,001,088

 For the period ended June 30, 2025

 Opening net book value  6,903,077  1,446,973  13,212,764  10,022,159  3,187,478  23,965,366  64,263,271  123,001,088

 Additions  -    502,120  6,785,814  1,784,100  15,567,420  183,750  10,982,818  35,806,022

 Disposals: 

 - Cost  -    -    (100,000)  -    -    (30,431)  -    (130,431)

 - Accumulated depreciation  -    -    5,300  -    -    5,224  -    10,524

 -    -    (94,700)  -    -    (25,207)  -    (119,907)

 Transfers to right-of-use assets  -    -    -    -    (10,282,420)  -    -    (10,282,420)

 Depreciation  -    (383,682)  (826,248)  (832,984)  (362,838)  (4,349,148)  (3,609,422)  (10,364,322)

 Closing net book value  6,903,077  1,565,411  19,077,630  10,973,275  8,109,640  19,774,761  71,636,667  138,040,461

 As at June 30, 2025 

 Cost   6,903,077  14,206,401  20,682,740  13,772,017  11,738,041  33,457,039  87,548,270  188,307,585

 Accumulated depreciation   -    (12,640,990)  (1,605,110)  (2,798,742)  (3,628,401)  (13,682,278)  (15,911,603)  (50,267,124)

 Net book value  6,903,077  1,565,411  19,077,630  10,973,275  8,109,640  19,774,761  71,636,667  138,040,461

Depreciation rate (per annum) 33% 10% 10% 20% 30% 10%

Office
premises

Leasehold
land

Leasehold
improvement

Furniture &
fixture

Office
equipment

Vehicles Computer Total

(Rupees)

4.1 The particulars of the Company's immovable fixed assets, including location and area thereof, have been disclosed

in note 1.2 to these financial statements.
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5. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Cost
Opening balance 78,213,975  23,768,475
Transfer from property and equipment 10,282,420  -
Addition 64,607,272  54,445,500

Closing balance 153,103,667  78,213,975

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance 11,170,875  3,834,730
Depreciation 21  7,048,014  7,336,145

Closing balance 18,218,889  11,170,875 

Net book value 134,884,778  67,043,100

Depreciation rate (per annum) 20% 20%

5.1 This represents Company's right to use certain vehicles, held by it under lease arrangements. The principal terms
and conditions of the said arrangements are as follows:

 Toyota Yaris  First Habib  06-Dec-2022 06-Dec-2022  3 years  No  2.5 Years

 Revo Mudarbha 06-Aug-2024 06-Aug-2024 4 years No 4 years

 MG HS  31-May-2023 31-May-2023  4 years  No  4 Years

 Sazgar Haval 31-May-2023 31-May-2023  4 years  No  4 Years

 Honda City 30-May-2024 30-May-2024  4 years  No  4 Years

 Tucson 04-Sep-2024 04-Sep-2024  4 years  No  4 years

 Swift CAR-493 06-Sep-2024 06-Sep-2024 4 years No 4 years

 Elantra JS Bank Limited 20-Sep-2024 20-Sep-2024 4 years No 4 years

 Honda City 30-May-2024 30-May-2024  4 years  No  4 Years

 Swift-BZU-741 04-Sep-2024 04-Sep-2024  4 years  No  4 years

 Swift-CAD-081 04-Sep-2024 04-Sep-2024  4 years  No  4 years

 CITY CBP-824 23-May-2025 23-May-2025  4 years  No  4 years

 Toyota Yaris CBH-421 11-Apr-2025 11-Apr-2025  4 years  No  4 years

Name of Vehicles Lessor Name
Lease

Agreement
Date

Lease
Commencement

Date

 Initial
Contractual
Term of the

Lease

Availability
of  Extension

Option?

 Estimated lease
term (as on the

Date of
Commencement

of the lease)

Note
June 30

2025
Rupees

December 31
2024

Rupees



6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Trading Rights Entitlement (TRE) Certificate

- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) 2,500,000 2,500,000
- Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) 2,500,000  2,500,000

6.1  5,000,000 5,000,000
Computer software 6.2  2,022,009  2,246,677

7,022,009  7,246,677

6.1 Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC)

Cost

Opening balance 6,394,750  6,394,750
Acquisition through reverse merger -    5,000,000
Write off during the period/year -    (5,000,000)

6,394,750  6,394,750
Accumulated impairment (1,394,750)  (1,394,750)

6.1.1  5,000,000  5,000,000

6.1.1 Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited vide its notification no. PSX/N-225 dated February 16, 2021 has notified the notional
value of a Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) amounting to Rs. 2.5 million. Accordingly, the Company has
carried its TREC at the said amount.

6.2  Computer software 

 Cost  2,785,417  2,785,417
 Accumulated amortization  (763,408)  (538,740)

 Net book value 2,022,009  2,246,677

 Movement for the period/year 
 Opening net book value 2,246,677  3,008,570
 Additions - acquisition through reverse merger -    285,417

 Write off: 
 - Cost -    (2,704,409)
 - Accumulated depreciation -    2,015,039

-    (689,370)
 Amortization 21  (224,668) (357,940)

 Closing net book value 2,022,009  2,246,677

7. LONG TERM ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS

Trade deposits:
- Central Depository Company (Basic deposit) 250,000  250,000
- National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 7.1  2,800,000  2,800,000
- Pakistan Stock Exchange (Base minimum capital) 500,000  4,225,000
- Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) 7.2  1,083,611  1,833,611

4,633,611  9,108,611
Advances:
- Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) 7.3  2,500,000  2,500,000
- Advance to staff 36.2  1,465,333  1,641,652

3,965,333  4,141,652
Security deposits
- Deposits against leased office premises 1,704,105  3,390,705
- Others 39,300  39,300

1,743,405  3,430,005

10,342,349  16,680,268
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Note
June 30

2025
Rupees

December 31
2024

Rupees
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7.1 Deposits placed with National Clearing Company 
of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)

Basic security deposit 400,000  400,000
Security deposit - DFCs 2,000,000  2,000,000
Security deposit - Ready Market 400,000  400,000

2,800,000  2,800,000

7.2 Deposits with Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited

Basic security deposit -    750,000
Clearing deposit 541,854  541,854
Exposure margin 541,757  541,757

1,083,611  1,833,611

7.3 Advance with Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited

This represent an advance made to Pakistan Mercantile Exchange  Limited (PMEX) for acquiring an office space at
NCEL Project.

8. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss
                                                    

- Quoted equity securities 8.1  97,172,172  121,840,657
- Units of mutual funds 63,660  62,098

97,235,832  121,902,755
At amortized cost
- Investment in market treasury bill 8.2  167,874,337  158,470,434

265,110,169  280,373,189

8.1 Investment in quoted equity securities

Note
June 30

2025
Rupees

December 31
2024

Rupees

 2,000  2,000 Abbott Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited  1,944,100  2,475,720

 69  69 Adamjee Insurance Company Limited  3,451  3,447

 200  200 Air Link Communication Limited  30,528  44,000

 -    36,507 Al Shaheer Corporation Limited -    278,183

 391  391 Avanceon Limited  19,077  24,121

 537  537 Dewan Salman Fibre Limited - Freeze  473  473

 99  2,430 Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited  38,849  890,158

 2,500  -   Ferozsons Laboratories Limited  974,050  -

 546  546 Ghandhara Industries Limited  355,135  331,766

 -    15,000 Glaxosmithkline Pakistan Limited  -    5,953,650

 10,000  10,000 Indus Motor Company Limited  17,355,500  21,296,000

 7,000  7,000 Js Bank Limited  86,310  63,420

 -    10,000 Ksb Pumps Company Limited  -    1,519,800

 245,294  245,294 Lse Capital Limited  1,471,764  1,582,146

 842,811  842,811 Lse Ventures Limited  9,692,327  8,554,532

 5,886  6,912 Mari Petroleum Company Limited  3,689,875  4,973,944

 3,000  23,206 Meezan Bank Limited  996,150  5,615,156

 68,511  75,000 Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limited  2,257,437  2,265,750

 2,000  -   National Bank of Pakistan  217,380  -

 -    5,000 National Refinery Limited  -    1,547,200

 5,000  5,000 Nimir Industrial Chemicals Limited  785,250  720,000

 133  233 Oil & Gas Development Company Limited  29,334  52,952

 500  500 Pakistan Capital Market Fund  -    -

 2,000  27,000 Pakistan Paper Products Limited  335,020  4,047,300

Name of Investee

June 30,
2025

December 31,
2024

June 30,
2025

December 31,
2024

(Number of shares) ------------ Rupees----------
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8.1.1 The number and fair value of securities pledged with PSX and NCCPL are as follows:

8.1.2 The number and fair value of securities pledged with financial institutions are as follows:

8.1.3 Unrealized (loss) / gain on remeasurement of investments
  in quoted equity securities as of the reporting date

Market value of the investments 97,172,172  121,840,657
Cost of the investments (100,154,620)  (62,609,641)

(2,982,448)  59,231,016
8.2 Investment in market treasury bill

as of the reporting date

Carrying value of the investments 167,874,337  158,470,434
Cost of the investments (157,898,926)  (157,898,926)

9,975,411  571,508

8.2.1 The Company purchased Market Treasury Bills on December 12, 2024, at a discounted value of Rs. 157,898,926
against a face value of Rs. 176,395,000, maturing on December 11, 2025. As of the reporting date, these Treasury
Bills have also been pledged with the National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) in the Deliverable
Futures Contracts (DFC) market.

Name of Investee

June 30,
2025

December 31,
2024

June 30,
2025

December 31,
2024

(Number of shares) ------------ Rupees----------

 -    2,000 Pakistan Petroleum Limited  -    407,100

 1,047  1,047 Pakistan Refinery Limited  35,525  46,403

 2,500  2,500 Pakistan State Oil Company Limited  943,825  1,101,725

 1,953,572  1,953,572 Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited  54,641,409  54,211,623

 500  500 Paramount Spinning Mills Limited  2,515  2,275

 1,000  1,000 Southern Electric Power Company Limited - Freeze  -    -

 25,000  -   Sui Southern Gas Company Limited  1,069,750  -

 25,000  -   Telecard Limited  197,000  -

 -    29,274 The Hub Power Company Limited  -    3,831,674

 318  318 Zeal Pak Cement Factory Limited - Freeze  140  140

 3,207,414  3,305,847 97,172,173  121,840,657

Clients  10,770,782  114,609,816  47,997,680  2,101,820,307
Brokerage House  2,852,386  65,467,404  2,744,557  64,603,199

 13,623,168  180,077,220  50,742,237  2,166,423,506

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

Number of
securities

Fair Value Number of
securities

Fair Value

(Rupees) (Rupees)

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

Rupees

Clients  6,245,473  969,799,833  15,829,820  1,139,077,514
Brokerage House  318,000  30,566,055  544,200  55,159,182

 6,563,473  1,000,365,888  16,374,020  1,194,236,696

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

Number of
securities

Fair Value Number of
securities

Fair Value

(Rupees) (Rupees)
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9. TRADE DEBTS

Gross receivables
Equity brokerage 9.1  970,974,810  754,014,284
Advisory and consultancy fees 1,857,023  203,400

972,831,833  754,217,684
Less: Provision for expected credit losses 9.2  (32,739,094)  (19,178,102)

940,092,739  735,039,582

9.1 Trade debts - Equity brokerage

9.1.1 Trade debts includes Rs. 80.59 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 117.10 million) due from related parties. The
maximum aggregate amount outstanding during the year from such parties (with reference to month-end balances)
amounted to Rs. 803.89 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 149.54 million).

9.1.2 The Company holds capital securities having fair value of Rs. 15,307.77 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 9,144.94
million) owned by its clients including related parties, as collaterals against trade debts.

9.2 Provision for expected credit losses

Balance at the beginning of the period/year 19,178,102  3,676,867
Charge for the period/year 22  13,560,992  15,501,235

Balance at the end of the period/year 32,739,094  19,178,102

10. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances

Advance to staff 10.1  3,221,517  1,720,420

Advance to supplier  2,666,251  4,314,406

5,887,768  6,034,826

Deposits

Deposits placed with NCCPL in respect of:

 - Loss on DFCs (net of demand) 36.2  104,905  7,219,432

 - Exposure margin on regular market 540,000,000  779,000,000

 - Exposure margin on DFCs 75,000,000  348,700,000

 - Exposure margin on Margin Trading 105,000,000  129,850,000

 - Concentration margin on Margin Trading 74,321,613  125,143,548

 - Exposure margin on Gem Market 600,000  160,000

795,026,518  1,390,072,980

Prepayments

 - Against leased office premises 5,857,495  7,226,010

 - Others 2,866,362  1,407,947

 8,723,857  8,633,957

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

Rupees

Name of related parties
Balance as at
June 30, 2025

Ageing analysis

1 to 30 days 30 to 180 days 180 to 365 days Above 365 days

Shahzad  13,225  13,225  -    -    -

Azneem bilwani  5,578,759  5,578,459  300  -    -

Erum bilwani  46,772,249  46,772,249  -    -    -

Muhammad uraib azneem bilwani  28,222,989  28,222,689  300  -    -

 80,587,222  80,586,623  600  -    -

June 30
2025

Rupees

(Restated)
December 31

2024
Rupees

Note
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Other receivables
Loan to related parties 10.2  130,284,782  299,677,849
Loan to Ali Malik 10.3 & 35  30,127,296  30,127,296
Profit receivable on DFCs 36.2  148,525,616  78,818,652
Profit receivable on deposits with NCCPL 20,049,966  10,933,219
Receivable from dealers 53,151  64,653
Sales tax receivable -    1,954,273

Others 36.2  4,042,540  99,489

333,083,351  421,675,431

1,142,721,494  1,826,417,194

10.1 This represents interest free advances provided in accordance with the Company's policy and these has been secured

against the provident fund balance.

10.2 Loan to related parties - unsecured

Ms. Erum Bilwani 10.2.1  50,750,482  225,030,256
M/s. Intertechnologies (Private) Limited 10.2.2  48,929,817  46,004,383
M/s. AzureTech (Private) Limited 10.2.3  30,604,483  28,643,210

130,284,782  299,677,849

10.2.1 Loan to Ms. Erum Bilwani

Opening balance 225,030,256  5,352,095
Disbursement made during the year -    209,000,000
Interest charged 12,399,550  10,678,161
Repayment received during the year  (186,679,324)  -

Closing balance 10.2.1.1  50,750,482  225,030,256

10.2.1.1 This represents a loan provided to Ms. Erm Bilwani, a related party, carrying interest at the rate of 3-month KIBOR
+ 2%, amounting to Rs. 12.4 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 10.7 million). The loan has a repayment term of 12
months; however, it is renewed for subsequent 12-month periods. There is no security for this receivable. The
maximum aggregate outstanding balance during the year, based on month-end balances, was Rs. 214.35 million

(December 31, 2024: Rs. 214.35 million).

10.2.2 Loan to M/s. Intertechnologies (Private) 

  Limited

Opening balance 46,004,383  42,522,234
Interest charged 2,925,434  4,239,599
Repayment received during the year -    (757,450)

Closing balance 10.2.2.1  48,929,817  46,004,383

10.2.2.1 This represents a loan provided to Intertechnologies (Private) Limited, a related party, to finance its working capital
requirements. The loan carries interest at the rate of 3-month KIBOR + 2% and amounts to Rs. 2.9 million as at
June 30, 2025 (December 31, 2024: Rs. 4.2 million). It is unsecured and repayable on demand. The maximum
aggregate outstanding balance during the year, based on month-end balances, was Rs. 41.76 million (December

31, 2024: Rs. 42.52 million).

10.2.3 Loan to M/s. AzureTech (Private) Limited

Opening balance 28,643,210  -

Disbursement made  -    28,000,000

Interest charged 1,961,273  643,210

Closing balance 10.2.3.1  30,604,483  28,643,210

June 30
2025

Rupees

(Restated)
December 31

2024
RupeesNote

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

Rupees
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10.2.3.1 This represents a loan provided to M/s. AzureTech (Private) Limited, a related party, for a working capital requirement,

carrying interest at the rate of 3-month KIBOR + 2%, amounting to Rs. 1,961,273 (December 31, 2024: Rs. 643,210).

There is no security for this receivable. The maximum aggregate outstanding balance during the year, based on

month-end balances, was Rs. 28 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 28 million).

10.3 This represents an interest-free, unsecured loan originally advanced to Mr. Ali Malik (former client) amounting to

PKR 100 million, of which PKR 30.127 million remains outstanding as at June 30, 2025. As explained in Note 35,

the outstanding balance has been reclassified from long-term investment to receivables from Mr. Ali Malik. The

amount is expected to be fully settled by December 31, 2025.

11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 36.2  50,000  87,214

Cash at bank
 - current accounts 138,470,651  231,272,779
 - saving accounts 11.1  31,800,306  12,790,143

 170,270,957 244,062,922

11.2  170,320,957  244,150,136

11.1 Markup on these balances ranges from 2.78 % to 4.78% (December 31, 2024: 11.01% to 20.05%) per annum
on daily product basis.

11.2 Bank balances include customers' bank balances held in designated bank accounts amounting to Rs. 130.76 million
(December 31, 2024: Rs. 222.88 million).

12. SHARE CAPITAL

12.1 Authorized share capital

With effect from June 16, 2025, the Company sub-divided its ordinary shares by reducing the par value from
Rs. 10 per share to Re. 1 per share. As a result, the number of authorised ordinary shares increased from 200,000,000
shares of Rs. 10 each to 2,000,000,000 shares of Re. 1 each, with no change in the aggregate authorised capital,
pursuant to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting held on April 28, 2025.

12.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

12.2.1 With effect from June 16, 2025, the Company sub-divided its ordinary shares by reducing the par value from

Rs. 10 per share to Re. 1 per share. Consequently, the number of issued ordinary shares increased from 128,751,024

shares of Rs. 10 each to 1,287,510,240 shares of Re. 1 each. This change was made pursuant to the approval of

the shareholders at the annual general meeting held on April 28, 2025. The sub-division of shares did not result

in any change in the aggregate issued share capital of the Company.

12.2.2 There are no agreements among shareholders in respect of voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal and

block voting.

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

RupeesNote

(Number of Shares)

June 30,
2025

Rupees

December 31,
2024

Rupees

Ordinary shares of Re.1/- each
(December 31, 2024: Rs. 10/- each):

 1,087,353,740 108,735,374 -  issued as consideration for the reverse merger 1,087,353,740  1,087,353,740
 200,156,500 20,015,650 -  issued as fully paid in cash  200,156,500  200,156,500

 1,287,510,240  128,751,024                                                                        12.2.1  1,287,510,240  1,287,510,240

June 30,
2025

Rupees

December 31,
2024

RupeesNote
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13. LEASE LIABILITY

Opening balance 53,989,111  16,644,682
Additions 76,103,273  53,569,100
Interest expense 24  3,963,782  6,764,883
Payments (13,835,210)  (22,989,554)

120,220,956  53,989,111
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities (21,379,050)  (19,966,637)

 98,841,906 34,022,474

14. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred taxation - net 14.1  9,583,751  16,990,705
Advance from employee 14.2  3,700,000  2,500,000

13,283,751  19,490,705
14.1 Deferred taxation - net

Deferred tax liability / (asset) in respect of:
- Capital gain / loss on investment in quoted equity 14.1.1  -    4,702,379
      securities
- Other temporary differences 14.1.2  9,583,751  12,288,326

9,583,751  16,990,705

14.1.1 Deferred tax on capital gain / loss on short term investments

Deferred tax liability / (asset) in respect of:
- Unrealized gain on investment in quoted equity 7,191,924  4,702,379
      securities
- Realized capital loss on sale of quoted equity 14.1.1.1  (7,191,924)  -
      securities

-    4,702,379

14.1.1.1 Deferred tax on realized capital loss on sale of quoted equity securities

The unrecognized deferred tax asset amounts to Rs. 15.482 million (2024: Rs. 25.180 million) in respect of realized
capital losses on the sale of quoted equity securities. This asset has not been recognized as it is not considered
probable that sufficient future taxable capital gains will be available against which these losses can be utilized.

14.1.2 Deferred tax in respect of other temporary differences

Property and equipment 13,286,651 14,303,060
Right-of-use assets 52,605,063  19,442,499
Accrued interest on investment in T-bill 3,890,410  165,737
Deferred tax asset recognized 14.1.2.1  (60,198,373)  (21,622,970)

9,583,751  12,288,326

14.1.2.1 Deferred tax assets

Provision for expected credit loss (12,768,247)  (5,561,650)
Lease liabilities (46,886,173)  (15,656,842)
Intangible assets (543,953)  (404,478)

Deferred tax assets available for recognition (60,198,373)  (21,622,970)

14.2 Advance from employee

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company entered into an arrangement with an employee for the
sale of a vehicle for Rs. 16.76 million, an amount deducted from the employee�s monthly salary. Ownership will
be transferred upon full payment, and the employee retains the right to settle the outstanding balance early with
prior written notice.

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

RupeesNote
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15. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured

Running finance:
JS Bank Limited 15.1  470,175,698  463,269,383
Bank Al Habib Limited 15.2  19,060,447  27,588,576
Habib Bank Limited 15.3  45,019,743  45,754,727

534,255,888  536,612,686

15.1 This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. JS Bank Limited with a limit
of Rs. 480 million (December 31, 2024: Rs.480 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-month KIBOR
plus 2% (December 31, 2024: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2%) per annum and is secured by way of pledge of shares with
minimum margin 35% and personal guarantees of Erum Bilwani. The expiry date of the facility is February 28,
2026.

15.2 This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. Bank Al-Habib Limited with
a limit of Rs. 300 million (December 31, 2024: Rs.300 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-Month
KIBOR plus 2% (December 31, 2024: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2%) per annum and is secured by way of a pledge of
shares of companies listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX), held in the name of the company (registered with
SECP) as per the bank�s approved shares list. Additionally, the facility is secured by the personal guarantees of Mrs.
Erum Bilwani. The expiry date of the facility is February 28, 2026.

15.3 The Company has a total finance facility of Rs. 52 million (December 31, 2024:  Rs. 52 million). these facilities are
availed for working capital requirements. These are secured against the pledge of T-bills with a 10% margin over
market value. The rate of mark-up on these facilities carry at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 0.1% per annum
(December 31, 2024: 1 month KIBOR plus 0.1% per annum). The expiry date of the facility is April 30, 2026.

15.4 As of the reporting date, the Company had unutilized facilities for short term borrowings available from above
mentioned banks amounting to Rs. 1,897.74 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 1,295.39 million).

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 756,352,128  1,350,621,795
Future profit withheld 36.2  148,428,116  78,818,653
Commission payable 70,384,325  58,411,821
Withholding sales taxes payable 447,927  126,093
Sales tax payable 9,412,935  21,006,396
Withholding income tax payable 26,472,925  17,099,633
Capital gains tax payable to NCCPL -    82,087,250
Accrued expenses 36.2  32,591,060  47,842,779
Due to a related party -    3,778,358
Other payables 36.2  20,842,828  21,775,243

1,064,932,244  1,681,568,021

17. TAXATION - NET

Income tax payable / (refundable)
Opening balance 17,089,186  26,338,676
Less: Taxes deducted at source during the period/year (8,024,023)  (33,401,972)

9,065,163  (7,063,296)

Add: Provision for current tax 26  63,443,601  36,252,141
Add: Provision for prior tax 26  7,319,093  (13,070,444)
Add: Income tax - Final tax regime 25  1,332,167  970,785

72,094,861  24,152,482

Closing balance  81,160,024  17,089,186

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

RupeesNote

June 30
2025

Rupees

(Restated)
December 31

2024
Rupees
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18. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

18.1 Contingencies

18.1.1 The income tax authorities issued a Show Cause Notice under Section 122(9) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
proposing an amendment under Section 122(5A) for Tax Year 2013. The proceedings were finalized through an
order dated August 05, 2015, resulting in an amendment to the Company�s deemed assessment. The Company
filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) on the merits of the case; however, the appeal
was dismissed due to non-attendance. Subsequently, the Company filed a second appeal before the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi, challenging the CIR (Appeals) order primarily on the ground that no proper
opportunity of being heard was provided during the earlier proceedings. Management is confident that the matter
will ultimately be decided in the Company�s favor. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial
statements.

18.1.2 The income tax authorities issued Show Cause Notices under Section 122(9) for further amendment under Section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for Tax Years 2010 and 2011. The Company filed petitions before the
Honorable High Court of Sindh at Karachi challenging the said notices, and Stay Orders were granted in the
Company�s favor. As per the recent cause list, both petitions have been dismissed due to non-prosecution. However,
the Company has not received any notice for initiation of fresh proceedings. Accordingly, no provision has been
recorded in these financial statements.

18.1.3 The tax department had issued Show Cause Notice under section 121(1)(d) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for
best judgment assessment for the tax year 2012. The Company had filed Suit before the Honorable High Court of
Sindh at Karachi for challenging notice and merger of proceedings under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 initiated and closed earlier by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue. The management is
confident that the eventual outcome of the matter will be decided in favour of the Company.

18.1.4 The income tax authorities had filed second appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi against
order no. 62/2016 & 63/2016 of the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal-III), Karachi passed in favor of the
Company in the matter of non withholding of tax Rs. 23,049,621/- and Rs. 35,389,628/- for tax year 2014 and
2015 respectively against payment of Buy-Back of shares under section 95A of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984. The management is confident that the eventual outcome of the matter will be decided again in favour of
the Company. Accordingly, no provisions have been made in these financial statements.

18.2 Commitments

Following commitments were outstanding as at the reporting date:

Bank guarantee in favour of NCCPL 18.2.1  395,000,000  395,000,000
Bank guarantee in favour of PSX

 -   25,000,000

18.2.1 This bank guarantee has been issued by M/s. Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited in favor of National Clearing
Company Pakistan Limited amounting to Rs. 25 million against Ready Market and amounting to Rs. 370 million
against Future Market.

19. OPERATING REVENUE

Brokerage commission - gross 631,050,286  977,709,880
Underwriting and financial advisory service revenue - gross 12,453,972  21,816,269

643,504,258  999,526,149
Less: Sindh sales tax (83,683,799)  (125,432,841)

559,820,459  874,093,308
Markup on Margin Financing 83,740,805  122,119,509

643,561,264  996,212,817

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

RupeesNote

Jan. 01, 2025 to
Jun. 30, 2025

Rupees

Jan. 01, 2024 to
Dec. 31, 2024

Rupees
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20. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS - net

Capital (loss)/gain on sale of short term investments - net  (9,638,489)  170,603,926
Change in unrealized gain on remeasurement of short term 
investments - net 36.2  (2,982,448)  59,231,016

(12,620,937)  229,834,942
Dividend income 2,546,243  10,207,255

(10,074,694)  240,042,197

21. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, commission and other benefits 21.1 & 35  268,795,336  380,588,145
CDC, NCCPL and PMEX charges 24,254,422  43,886,017
Communication expenses 19,146,646  41,256,935
Directors remuneration 30  21,315,498  30,997,540
Legal and professional charges 36.2  12,334,134  25,784,611
Brokerage commission to former parent 14,734,532  23,127,656
Rent, rates and taxes 9,162,562  22,737,905
Utility expense 3,811,012  11,742,830
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 4  10,364,322  11,408,007
Depreciation on right-of-use-asset 5  7,048,014  7,336,145
Repair and maintenance 3,341,050  6,684,058
Bank charges 3,316,684  6,621,238
Advertisement expense 1,605,972  5,738,555
Entertainment expense 3,634,557  5,132,651
Traveling and conveyance expenses 3,204,663  4,872,847
Insurance expense 1,653,146  3,515,943
PSX rent, electricity and service charges 2,904,853  2,258,595
Auditor's remuneration 21.2  2,052,000  1,566,000
Printing and stationery 446,456  554,802
Amortization of intangible assets 6.2  224,668  357,940
Postage and courier 395,544  213,746
Other expense 3,705,179  4,938,355

417,451,249  641,320,521

21.1 Salaries, commission and other benefits

Salaries and other benefits 21.1.1  106,394,082  164,399,611
Commission 162,401,254  184,811,567

268,795,336  349,211,178

21.1.1 Salaries, commission and other benefits include Rs. 9.14 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 12.89 million) in respect
of provident fund contribution.

21.2 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee  1,300,000  1,000,000
Code of Corporate Governance 150,000  80,000
Other certifications 450,000  370,000
Sales tax 152,000  116,000

36.2  2,052,000  1,566,000

Note

Jan. 01, 2025 to
Jun. 30, 2025

Rupees

Jan. 01, 2024 to
Dec. 31, 2024

Rupees

Jan. 01, 2025 to
Jun. 30, 2025

Rupees

(Restated)
Jan. 01, 2024 to
Dec. 31, 2024

Rupees
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22. OTHER EXPENSES

Donation 22.1  4,633,571  39,073,500
Provision for expected credit losses on trade debts 9.2  13,560,992  15,501,235
Intangible assets written off -    5,689,370
Other receivables and deposits written off 203,400  231,147

18,397,963  60,495,252

22.1 None of the directors or their spouse had any interest in the donees. Further, the particulars of the parties to whom
donation paid exceeds Rs. 1 million or 10% of the total donation, whichever is higher, are as follows:

Ahsas-e-Insaniyat Foundation 2,000,000  -

Indus Hospital -    5,000,000

Aitmaad Trust 2,500,000  5,000,000

Batwa Memon Jamat -    5,000,000

Saylani Welfare Trust -    5,000,000

Baitussalam Welfare Trust -    10,000,000

23. OTHER INCOME

Markup income 23.1  50,948,452  78,331,699
Bargain purchase gain on reverse merger -    25,737,911
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 49,361  119,773
Others 6,559,799  8,916,561

57,557,612  113,105,944

23.1 Markup income

Interest income on bank deposits 681,896  1,031,157
Interest income on deposits with NCCPL 23,576,396  61,168,064
Interest accrue on investment in T-bills 36.2  9,403,903  571,508
Interest accrue on loan to related party 10.2.3  17,286,257  15,560,970

50,948,452  78,331,699

24. FINANCE COSTS

Markup on short term borrowings 31,171,704  82,171,878
Markup on long term borrowing -    26,395,533
Markup on MTS financing -    18,795,793
Markup on lease 3,963,782  6,764,883

35,135,486  134,128,087 

25. LEVIES

Income tax - Final tax regime 1,332,167  970,785

26. TAXATION - NET

Current 63,443,601  36,252,141
Prior tax charge / (income) 35  7,319,093  (13,070,444)

70,762,694  23,181,697
Deferred (7,406,954)  12,241,512

 63,355,740  35,423,209

Note
Jan. 01, 2025 to

Jun. 30, 2025
Rupees

Jan. 01, 2024 to
Dec. 31, 2024

Rupees



26.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit before taxation

Profit before levies and taxation 220,059,484  513,417,098

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (December 31, 2024: 29%) 63,817,250  148,890,958

Tax effects of:
 - permanent difference (58,986)  (67,033)
 - income subject to taxation under Presumptive Tax Regime (1,334,498)  (2,433,199)
 - benefit of unused tax losses and tax credits for which deferred tax 
      asset was not previously recognized (1,167,329)  (50,913,941)
 - realized  or unrealized capital gain on short term investments 1,170,527  (34,914,280)
 - tax effects on admissible / inadmissible adjustment 928,776  (25,139,296)

63,355,740  35,423,209

26.2 Status of income tax assessments

The Company�s income tax assessments are deemed finalized under the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (�the Ordinance�), on the basis of returns filed for the respective periods. Pursuant to the reverse merger
scheme, IMS (the accounting acquirer) was dissolved and merged with the Company (formerly EFG Hermes Pakistan
Limited). Accordingly:

 - IMS filed its last income tax return for the normal tax year ended June 30, 2024 (Tax Year 2024);

- The Company (formerly EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited) filed its return for the special tax year ended   
   December 31, 2023 (Tax Year 2024); and

- Following the reverse merger, the Company filed its return for the transitional period from January 1, 2024
          to June 30, 2024 (Transitional Tax Year 2024).

Tax returns so filed are treated as deemed assessments (except explained in note 18.1 to the financial statement)
under the Ordinance. However, these may be subject to further proceedings if selected for audit by the taxation
authorities. The Commissioner of Inland Revenue may select any deemed assessment order for audit within five years
from the date of filing of the return.

27. EARNING PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

27.1 Basic earnings per share

Profit after taxation 155,371,577  477,023,104

                                        ������ Number of shares ������

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 27.2  1,287,510,240  1,187,431,990

                                                                                                                                             ������ Rupees ������

Earnings per share - basic 0.12  0.40

27.2 On June 16, 2025, the Company sub-divided its issued ordinary shares by reducing the par value from Rs. 10 per
share to Re. 1 per share. Consequently, the number of outstanding ordinary shares increased proportionately, with
no change in the aggregate share capital.

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 33 Earnings per Share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares
as of December 31, 2024 has been restated retrospectively to reflect the effect of the sub-division of shares.

27.3 Diluted earnings per share

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, since there were no potential ordinary
shares in issue as at June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024.
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Jan. 01, 2025 to
Jun. 30, 2025

Rupees

Jan. 01, 2024 to
Dec. 31, 2024

Rupees

Note
Jan. 01, 2025 to

Jun. 30, 2025
Rupees

(Restated)
Jan. 01, 2024 to
Dec. 31, 2024

Rupees



S E C U R I T I E S  L T D

HALF YEAR REPORT (AUDITED) JUNE 2025 63

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows are reconciled
to the related items in the statement of financial position as follows: 

Cash and bank balances 11  170,320,957  244,150,136
Short-term borrowings - running finance 15  (534,255,888)  (536,612,686)

 (363,934,931)  (292,462,550)

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties comprise of associated companies, key management personnel including directors and their close
family members, major shareholders of the Company and staff provident fund. Remuneration of the Chief Executive
and Directors is disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements. Transactions entered into, and balances held with,
related parties during the year, are as follows:

Name of the related
party

Relationship and
percentage
shareholding

Transactions during the year
and year end balances

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

Rupees

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

RupeesNote

Transactions during the year
Interest Accrued  2,925,434  4,239,599
Loan repaid  -    757,450

Balance outstanding
Loan repaid 48,929,817  46,004,383

Transactions during the year
Loan repaid 3,798,358  20,000

Balance outstanding
Loan payable  -    3,798,358

Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earned  -    251,585

Balance outstanding
Trade payable  2,375,163  2,375,163

Transactions during the year
Interest Accrued  1,961,273  643,210
Loan disbursed  -    28,000,000

Balance outstanding
Loan receivable  30,604,483  28,643,210

Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earned  10,148,229  15,505,268
Loan disbursed during the year  -    209,000,000
Loan recovered during the year  (186,679,324)  -
Interest Accrued  12,399,550  10,678,161

Balance outstanding
Loan receivable  50,750,482  225,030,256
Trade receivable  46,772,249  91,311,879

Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earned  45,644,547  91,789,479 

Balance outstanding
Trade receivable  5,578,759  -
Trade payable  -    119,913,866

Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earned 1,055,639  1,060,089

Balance outstanding
Trade receivable 13,225  -
Trade payable  -    738,294 

Intertechnologies Associated
(Private) Limited company

Intermarket Properties
and Developers Associated
(Private) Limited company

AB Holdings Limited Associated 
company

Azuretech (Private) Associated
Limited company

Erum Bilwani Executive
Director

Azneem Bilwani Spouse of 
Executive
Director

Shahzad Director



30. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including certain benefits to  the
Chief Executive, Directors and executives of the Company, are as follows:

30.1 The Company has also provided its Chief Executive, Directors and certain executives with Company 
maintained car.

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

31.1 Financial risk analysis

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk  (interest/mark-
up rate risk and price risk). The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance. The Company
consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any material change from previous periods in the manner
described in notes below.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk management
framework.  All treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies. 
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Name of the related
party

Relationship and
percentage
shareholding

Transactions during the year
and year end balances

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

Rupees

Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earned  1,221,895  2,011,583
Loan recovered  -    -

Balance outstanding
Trade receivable  -    -
Trade payable 493,909  51,177

Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earned  1,621,162  1,515,276

Balance outstanding
Trade receivable  28,222,989  22,100,049

Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earned  36,844  49,177

Balance outstanding
Trade receivable  -    3,683,427
Trade payable  17,650  -

Muhammad Rehan
Alam Director

Uraib Azneem Bilwani Close family 
member of 
director/major 
shareholder

Laiba Azneem Bilwani Close family 
member of 
director

Managerial remuneration  5,811,000  8,250,000  7,195,625  13,729,849  29,601,276  53,361,531  42,607,901  75,341,380

Bonus  3,575,294  4,850,000  2,537,381  5,112,500  6,214,659  5,485,000  12,327,334  15,447,500

Meeting fee  -    50,000  1,460,000  250,000  -    -    1,460,000  300,000

Retirement benefits  348,660  495,000  387,538  1,022,691  1,968,245  3,316,168  2,704,443  4,833,859

 9,734,954  13,645,000  11,580,544  20,115,040  37,784,180  62,162,698  59,099,678  95,922,739

Number of persons 1 1 7 7 18 14

Chief Executive

June 30, 2025

Director Executive Total

Dec 31, 2024 June 30, 2025 Dec 31, 2024 June 30, 2025 Dec 31, 2024 June 30, 2025 Dec 31, 2024
Rupees
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31.1.1 Market risk 

Market risk means that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices such as foreign exchange rates, equity prices and interest rates. The objective is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Market risk comprises of three types of
risks: foreign currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk. The market risks associated with the Company's business
activities are discussed as under:

(i) Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. All foreign currency translations are carried out within acceptable parameters
of policies established by Board of Directors.

(ii) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the
market prices (other than those arising from interest/ mark up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar
financial instruments traded in the market. Presently, daily stock market fluctuation is controlled by regulatory
authorities which reduces the volatility of prices of equity securities. The Company manages price risk by monitoring
the exposure in quoted securities and implementing the strict discipline in internal risk management and investment
policies, which includes disposing of equity investments and collaterals held before it leads the Company to incur
significant mark-to-market and credit losses. As of the reporting date, the Company was exposed to price risk since
it had investments in quoted equity securities and units of mutual funds, amounting in aggregate, to Rs. 97.24
million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 121.90 million) and also because the Company held collaterals in the form of equity
securities against their debtor balances.

The carrying value of investments subject to price risk is based on quoted market prices as of the reporting date.
Market prices are subject to fluctuation and, consequently, the amount realized on the subsequent sale of an
investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Fluctuation in the market price of a security may
result from perceived changes in the underlying economic characteristics of the investee, the relative price of
alternative investments and general market conditions. Furthermore, amount realized on the sale of a particular
security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold.

The Company's portfolio of short term investments is broadly diversified so as to mitigate the significant risk of
decline in prices of securities in particular sectors of the market.

Analysis of short term investment in quoted equity securities by business sector is as follows:

Insurance  3,451 0.00%  3,447 0.00%

Fertilizer  38,849 0.04%  890,158 0.73%

Technology & Communication  246,605 0.25%  68,121 0.06%

Oil & Gas Exploration Companies  3,719,209 3.83%  5,433,996 4.46%

Cement  140 0.00%  140 0.00%

Textile Composite  2,515 0.00%  2,275 0.00%

Inv. Banks / Inv. Cos. / Securities Cos.  65,805,499 67.72%  64,348,301 52.81%

Synthetic & Rayon  473 0.00%  473 0.00%

Automobile Assembler  17,710,635 18.23%  21,627,766 17.75%

Refinery  35,525 0.04%  1,593,603 1.31%

Pharmaceuticals  2,918,150 3.00%  8,429,370 6.92%

Oil & Gas Marketing Companies  2,013,575 2.07%  1,379,908 1.13%

Chemical  785,250 0.81%  720,000 0.59%

Commercial Banks  1,299,840 1.34%  5,678,576 4.66%

Engineering  -   0.00%  1,519,800 1.25%

Paper, Board & Packaging  335,020 0.34%  4,047,300 3.32%

Power Generation & Distribution  -   0.00%  3,831,673 3.14%

Sugar & Allied Industries  2,257,437 2.32%  2,265,750 1.86%

 97,172,173 100.00%  121,840,657 100.00%

June 30, 2025

(Rupees)               %

December 31, 2024

(Rupees)                     %
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Sensitivity analysis:

The table below summarizes Company's price risk as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 and shows the
effects of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as at the reporting dates. The selected
hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Indeed, results
could be worse because of the nature of markets and the aforementioned concentrations existing in Company's
investment portfolio.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest / mark-up rates. Sensitivity to interest / mark up rate risk arises
from mismatches of financial assets and liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period. The Company manages
these mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted.
The short term borrowing arrangements have variable rate pricing that is dependent on the Karachi Inter Bank Offer
Rate (KIBOR) as indicated in note to these financial statements.

Sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate would not affect the carrying amount of any financial instrument.

Sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest-bearing financial instruments
was as follows:

The following information summarizes the estimated effects of 1% hypothetical increases and decreases in interest
rates on cash flows from financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to interest rate risk. It is assumed
that the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each category of instrument containing interest rate risk. The
hypothetical changes in market rates do not reflect what could be deemed best or worst case scenarios. Variations
in market interest rates could produce significant changes at the time of early repayments. For these reasons, actual
results might differ from those reflected in the details specified below. The analysis assumes that all other variables
remain constant.

As at June 30, 2025

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial instruments (3,567,435)  3,567,435

As at December 31, 2024

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial instruments (3,719,140)  3,719,140

June 30, 2025  97,235,832 10% increase  106,959,415  9,723,583
10% decrease  87,512,249  (9,723,583)

December 31, 2024  121,902,755 10% increase  134,093,031  12,190,276
10% decrease  109,712,480  (12,190,275)

Hypothetical
increase /

(decrease) in profit
/ (loss) before taxFair value

Hypothetical price
change

Estimated fair
value after

hypothetical
change in prices

Financial assets - variable rate instruments

Bank deposits - saving account 2.78 % to 4.78% 11.01% to 20.05%  31,800,306  12,790,143

Deposits placed with NCCPL 10.00% 8.50%  795,026,518  1,390,072,980

Financial liabilities - variable rate instruments

Short Term Borrowing 11.48% to 14.16% 12.70% to 21.99%  534,255,888  536,612,686

Lease liabilities 13.37% to 14.65% 24.49% to 16.25%  120,220,956  53,989,111

June 30, 2025 Dec. 31 2024 June 30, 2025 Dec. 31 2024

Effective interest rate (%) Carrying amounts (Rs.)

1% increase  1% (decrease)

Effect on profit after tax

------------- Rupees -------------
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31.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation.

A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired as and when it falls under the definition of a 'defaulted' financial
asset. For the Company�s internal credit management purposes, a financial asset is considered as defaulted when it
is past due for 30 days or more.

The Company writes off a defaulted financial asset when there remains no reasonable probability of recovering the
carrying amount of the asset through available means.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Long term advances and deposits 10,342,349  16,680,268
Trade debts (a)  940,092,739  735,039,582
Receivables against margin financing 553,725,386  640,570,348
Short term deposits 795,026,518  1,390,072,980
Other receivables 333,083,351  419,721,158
Bank balances (b)  170,270,957  244,062,922

 2,802,541,300  3,446,147,258
Note (a) - Credit risk exposure on trade debts

To reduce the exposure to credit risk the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payments from its
customers. 

The aging of local trade debts as at the reporting date is as follows:

Note (b) - Credit risk exposure on bank balances

The Company's credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit
ratings. As of the reporting date, the external credit ratings of the Company's bankers were as follows:

June 30
2025

Rupees

December 31
2024

RupeesNote

Gross
carrying
amount

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

Provision for
expected

credit losses

Gross
carrying
amount

Provision for
expected

credit losses

Past due 1-30 days  721,268,330  -    635,223,680  -
Past due 31-180 days  156,584,158  10,663,784  57,693,778  2,336,062
Past due 181-365 days  93,551,656  21,542,695  26,698,406  3,217,729
More than 365 days  1,427,689  532,615  34,601,820  13,624,311

972,831,833  32,739,094  754,217,684  19,178,102

Al Baraka Bank Limited A+ JCR VIS  778,972  22,483,972
Allied Bank Limited AAA PACRA  13,112  13,182
Askari Bank Limited AA+ PACRA  200,000  200,000
Bank Al Habib Limited AAA PACRA  10,411,997  7,987,317
Bank Alfalah Limited AAA PACRA  3,765,732  1,343,912
Dubai Islamic Bank AA JCR VIS  1,961,398  19,192,254
Habib Bank Limited AAA JCR VIS  11,409,893  55,731,923
Habib Metropolitan Bank AA+ PACRA  16,388,776  33,162,784
JS Bank Limited AA PACRA  85,297,190  68,015,799
MCB Bank Limited AAA PACRA  5,458,112  3,428,727
Meezan Bank Limited AAA JCR JCR VIS  20,358,957  4,343,572
Standard Chartered Pakistan AAA PACRA  66,465  193,053
Summit Bank Limited BBB- JCR JCR VIS  9,213,552  22,006,059
United Bank Limited AAA JCR VIS  4,946,801  5,960,368

 170,270,957  244,062,922

Credit rating
agency

Short term
rating

Banks / other institutions
June 30

2025
Dec. 31,

2024
��������� Rupees ���������

Rupees



Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the
same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic
region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company�s performance to developments affecting a particular industry. As of the reporting date,
the Company was exposed to the following concentrations of credit risk:

31.1.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility
that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company�s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments:

31.2 Financial instruments by categories

The table below provides reconciliation of the line items in the Company's statement of financial position to the
categories of financial instruments.
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June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

 Total
exposure

Concentration  % of
total

exposure

 Total
exposure

Concentration  % of
total

exposure

��������������������������� Rupees ���������������������������

Trade debts 940,092,739  164,903,752 18%  735,039,582  93,389,492 13%
Bank balances 170,270,957  54,254,155 32%  244,062,922  56,128,371 23%

219,157,907 149,517,863

June 30, 2025
Short term borrowings - secured  534,255,888  534,255,888  534,255,888  -    -    -
Lease Liability  120,220,956  156,584,031  18,934,241  18,228,075  119,421,715  -
Advance from employee  3,700,000  3,700,000  -    -    3,700,000 
Trade and other payables  1,028,598,457  1,028,598,457  1,028,598,457  -    -    -
Accrued markup  13,458,895  13,458,895  13,458,895  -    -    -

 1,700,234,196  1,736,597,271  1,595,247,481  18,228,075  123,121,715  -

December 31, 2024
Short term borrowings - secured  536,612,686  536,612,686  -    -    -    -
Lease Liability  53,989,111  26,390,096  3,373,920  3,373,920  19,642,256  -
Advance from employee  2,500,000  2,500,000  -    -    2,500,000 
Trade and other payables  1,561,248,649  1,561,248,649  1,561,248,649  -    -    -
Accrued markup  17,165,702  17,165,702  17,165,702  -    -    -

 2,171,516,148  2,143,917,133  1,581,788,271  3,373,920  22,142,256  -

Contractual cash flows

Carrying
amount

��������������������������� Rupees ���������������������������

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

Six to twelve
months

One to five
years

More than
five years
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Financial assets
Long term deposits  -    10,342,349  -
Short term investments  97,235,832  167,874,337  -
Trade debts  -    940,092,739  -
Receivables against margin financing  -    553,725,386  -
Short term deposits  -    795,026,518  -
Other receivables  -    333,083,351  -
Cash and bank balances  -    170,320,957  -

97,235,832  2,970,465,637  -

Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings - secured  -    534,255,888  -
Lease liabilities  -    120,220,956  -
Trade and other payables  -    1,064,484,317  -
Accrued markup  -    13,458,895  -

-    1,732,420,056  -

June 30, 2025

At fair value
through profit

or loss

�������������������� Rupees ��������������������

At amortised
cost

At fair value
through other
comprehensive

income

Financial assets
Long term deposits  -    16,680,268  -
Short term investments  121,902,755  158,470,434  -
Trade debts  -    735,039,582  -
Receivables against margin financing  -    640,570,348  -
Short term deposits  -    1,390,072,980  -
Other receivables  -    421,675,431  -
Cash and bank balances  -    244,150,136  -

 121,902,755  3,606,659,179  -
Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings - secured -    536,612,686  -
Lease liabilities  -    53,989,111  -
Trade and other payables  -    1,664,468,388  -
Accrued markup  -    17,165,702 

 -
 -    2,272,235,887  -

December 31, 2024

At fair value
through profit

or loss

�������������������� Rupees ��������������������

At amortised
cost

At fair value
through other
comprehensive

income

32. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values
and the fair value estimates.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:
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Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments 

where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data.

Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other
financial instruments the Company determines fair values using valuation techniques unless the instruments do not
have a market / quoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

The table below analyses assets measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

33. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

33.1 Management of capital

The Company�s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company�s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure.

Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Company manages as capital:

Shareholders' equity:

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 12  1,287,510,240  1,287,510,240
Discount on issue of shares (622,379,278)  (622,379,278)
Unappropriated profit 836,325,499  938,455,970

Total capital managed by the Company 1,501,456,461  1,603,586,932

33.2 Capital Adequacy Level

The Capital Adequacy Level as defined by Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) is calculated as
follows:

Total assets 33.2.1  3,362,260,342  3,940,521,582
Less: Total liabilities 1,860,803,881  2,336,934,650

Capital Adequacy Level 1,501,456,461  1,603,586,932

33.2.1 While determining the value of the total assets the notional value of the TRE certificate as at year end as determined
by Pakistan Stock Exchange has been considered.

33.3 Liquid Capital [as per the requirements of the Securities Brokers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016]

June 30, 2025
Financial assets measured at fair value

Investment in quoted equity securities 97,172,172  -    -   97,172,172

Investment in units of mutual funds 63,660  -    -   63,660

December 31, 2024
Financial assets measured at fair value

Investment in quoted equity securities 121,840,657  -    -   121,840,657

Investment in units of mutual funds 62,098  -    -   62,098

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

------------ Amount in  Rupees -----------

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

------------ Amount in  Rupees -----------

Note

June 30,
2025

December 31,
2024

��������� Rupees ���������
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34. OPERATING SEGMENT

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment as the company's asset
allocation decisions are based on a single, integrated business strategy, and the company's performance is evaluated
on an overall basis:

Entity wide information with respect to IFRS-8 "Operating Segments" are stated below:

(a) Revenue from brokerage commission represents 85.64% (December 31, 2024: 85.82%) of total revenue whereas
remaining represent revenue from Underwriting and financial advisory service revenue and markup on Margin
Financing.

(b) All non current assets of the Company as at December 31, 2024 are located in Pakistan.
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(c) 8.70% brokerage commission earned relates to customer outside Pakistan (December 31, 2024: 8.89%).

(d) There is no major customer that amount to more than 10% of the company's revenue excluding sales tax and
federal excised duty.

35. CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS

Omission of Bonus Expense

In the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company inadvertently omitted to record
the accrual of bonus expense under Salaries and Other Benefits and the corresponding liability under Trade and
Other Payables. This resulted in an understatement of liabilities by Rs. 31.4 million as at that date, and a corresponding
understatement of administrative expenses, leading to an overstatement of unappropriated profits in the annual
financial statements. As employee bonuses are deductible for tax purposes, this omission also resulted in an
overstatement of taxable income and the related tax liability for the year.

Reversal of Super Tax Provision

In the previous financial statements, IMS had inadvertently recognized a provision for super tax amounting to Rs.
13.070 million for the year ended 30 June 2024. Following the merger with EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited, this
provision was also carried forward, as no payment had been made up to December 2024. Subsequently, upon filing
of the income tax return for tax year 2024 in December 2024, it was determined that no super tax was chargeable,
as IMS had sufficient brought forward losses which reduced its taxable income, and consequently, income under
section 4C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 did not fall within the slab subject to super tax. The provision,
however, was inadvertently not reversed in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. In
accordance with IAS 8, this error has been corrected by recognizing prior period income in the comparative figures
presented in the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2025.

Reclassification of Loan Balance

Previously, the Company had advanced a loan of PKR 100 million to Mr. Ali Malik (former client), of which PKR
30.127 million remains outstanding as at June 30, 2025. The shares of Coastal Company Limited (formerly National
Asset Management Company), provided as collateral in the name of a director�s spouse, were erroneously classified
as a long-term investment, despite the fact that control of these shares had not been transferred to the Company.
During the year, management identified this misclassification and determined that the balance should be presented
as a receivable from Mr. Ali Malik, as the shares merely served as collateral security. Accordingly, the related balance
has been reclassified to Other Receivables in the statement of financial position.

Above prior period error has been corrected retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial
Statements, and the comparative figures have been restated. As the restatement had a material impact on the
statement of financial position at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented (i.e., December 31,
2023), a third statement of financial position has also been presented in these financial statements in compliance
with IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements'.

The retrospective effects on the corresponding figures presented in these financial statements are as follows:

Effects on the statement of financial position

Long term investment 30,127,296  -  (30,127,296)  30,127,296  -    (30,127,296)

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Other receivables 391,548,135  421,675,431  30,127,296  120,218,362  150,345,658  30,127,296

Share capital and reserves

Unappropriated profit 943,684,154  938,455,970  (5,228,184)  461,432,866  461,432,866 -

Trade and other payables

Accrued expenses  16,465,812  47,842,779  31,376,967  11,932,036  11,932,036 -

Taxation - net 43,237,969  17,089,186  (26,148,783)  26,338,676  26,338,676 -

As at December 31, 2024

As previously
reported

As restated Change

As at December 31, 2023

As previously
reported

As restated Change

Rupees Rupees



35.1 On June 16, 2025, the Company sub-divided its issued ordinary shares by reducing the par value from Rs. 10 per
share to Re. 1 per share. This resulted in a proportional increase in the number of shares outstanding and affected
the weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of earnings per share. In accordance with IAS 33
Earnings per Share and as stated in Note 27.2 to these financial statements, the weighted average number of
ordinary shares as of December 31, 2024, has been restated retrospectively to reflect the impact of the sub-division
of shares. 

Furthermore, the prior-period profit has also been restated to reflect the correction of a prior-period error. Accordingly,
the earnings per share for the comparative period have been restated retrospectively to incorporate both the effect
of sub-division of shares and the adjustment to prior-period profit.

36. GENERAL

36.1 Customers assets held in the Central Depository System
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Effects on the statement of profit or loss / statement of comprehensive income

Operating revenue 996,212,817  996,212,817  -

Income from investments - net 240,042,197  240,042,197  -

1,236,255,014  1,236,255,014  -   

Administrative expenses (609,943,554)  (641,320,521)  (31,376,967)

Other expenses (60,495,252)  (60,495,252)  -

Other Income 113,105,944  113,105,944  -

678,922,152  647,545,185  (31,376,967)

Finance costs (134,128,087)  (134,128,087)  -

Profit before levies and taxation 544,794,065  513,417,098  (31,376,967)

Levies (970,785)  (970,785)  -   

Profit before taxation 543,823,280  512,446,313  (31,376,967)

Taxation - net (61,571,992)  (35,423,209)  26,148,783

Profit after taxation 482,251,288  477,023,104  (5,228,184)

Earning per share - basic and diluted                                 35.1  4.06  0.40  (3.66)

Other comprehensive income -    -    -

Total comprehensive income for the period/year 482,251,288  477,023,104  (5,228,184)

As at December 31, 2024

As previously
reported

As restated Change

Rupees

Directors/
Sponsors/CEO Employees Clients' account Total
/Shareholder 

Number of shares 1,462,439,378  3,296,260  79,654,627  1,545,390,265

Value of shares 22,143,210,440  55,624,583  6,500,766,239  28,699,601,261

Directors/
Sponsors/CEO Employees    Clients' account Total
/Shareholder 

Number of shares 58,092,149  5,451,065  490,437,403  553,980,617

Value of shares  4,142,571,263  61,258,323  17,831,871,764  22,035,701,350

As of 30 June 2025

As of 31 December 2024
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36.2 Reclassification of corresponding figures

In these financial statements the following corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever
considered necessary for the purposes of comparison and better presentation. The effect of these reclassification
is not regarded as material.

Reclassified from component Reclassified to component -- Rupees --

Balance held with bank - current account Balance held with bank - saving account
(Cash and bank) (Cash and bank) 28,386 

Trade and other payables Trade and other payables
(Other payables) (Accrued expenses) 202,020

Income from investments - net Other income

(Change in unrealized gain on (Markup income - Interest accrue
remeasurement of short term on investment in T-Bills) 571,508
investments - net)

Auditor's remuneration Legal and professional charges
(Administrative expense) (Administrative expense) 184,000 

Loss on DFCs (net of demand) Future profit withheld
(Advances, deposits, prepayments (Trade and other payables) 34,098,928
and other receivables)

Deposits placed with PMEX Deposits placed with PMEX
(Advances, deposits, prepayments (Long term advances and deposits) 1,083,611
and other receivables)

36.3 Investments made by the provident fund

The investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of
the Companies Act, 2017 and  the rules formulated for this purpose.

June 30, December 31,
2025 2024

36.4 Number of employees    ����������� Number ����������� 

Total number of employees as at the year end 94 92

Average number of employees during the year 90 80

36.5 Date of authorization of financial statement for issue

These financial statements have been authorised by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held
on 01-September-2025.

36.6 Level of rounding

All the figures in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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INTERMARKET SECURITIES LIMITED

5th Floor, Bahria Complex-IV, Ext. Block,
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